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THEME
STATEMENT

The Value of Electricity 

Electricity is a service that most of us can’t do without. It powers 
our homes, our businesses, our lives.  Essential services – 
medical and emergency services, police, communications, 
business, industry and government – could not function as they 
do without electricity. 

And thanks to LUCELEC’s excellent reliability rating, it is a 
service many take for granted as most people don’t think about 
the value of electricity until the power goes out. 

But while our customers don’t have to think about it often, we do 
- 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.  LUCELEC understands 
intimately, electricity’s value to you and to the country, and we 
work hard to ensure it is available when you need it, and at a cost 
that is among the lowest in the Caribbean.  

And because we understand the value of electricity, and our role 
in ensuring that value, we similarly embrace the responsibility we 
have to add value to the wider society through our support of 
education, sports, health care, safety and security, arts and 
culture, youth development, communities, charities, business 
and so much more.

Electricity makes so much possible. LUCELEC too.
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2013 CORPORATE
PERFORMANCE & 
2014 TARGETS

50.0% 
Completion of agreed HR 
deliverables  
2013 Target - 90% 

Achievement levels of 
Strategic project plan 

INDICES 
MEASURE OF 

SUCCESS 
TARGET 2013 PERFORMANCE 2014 TARGET 

Improve Financial
Performance 

Return on Equity 12.90% 12.0% N/A  

Profit After Tax1 /Net 
Income 

N/A N/A $26.2M 

Improved Working 
Capital  

1.5  1.70 1.70 

Increase customer
value and 
stakeholder
satisfaction 

Fuel Efficiency (kWh/litre) 4.295 4.33  4.31  

SAIDI - System Average 
Interruption Duration 
Index (hours) 

10.5 8.69  9.00  

Stakeholder  (Customer) 
Satisfaction Score 

85%
 

85.80% 85.0% 

Identify & implement
new business 
opportunities

Establishment of new 
Business venture 

Two Business plans 
approved for execution 

45% N/A 

Improved
Cost Effectiveness
of Energy Supply

 

Least cost fuel identified 80% completion  81% N/A 

Adding Solar PV to the 
generation portfolio  

75kW PV system 
commissioned and 
Supplier selected for 
utility scale PV 

N/A 100% 

Own use reduction 

To install 120 LED lamps 
by December 2013  

168 
(internal) 

N/A 

90 LED Street Lights 
installed at Cul de Sac 

N/A 100% 

Reduction in 
System Losses 

System Losses 9.55% 8.82% 8.61% 

Improved HR 
Credibility  

90% 

 

 
   Ready for New

Regulation

Completion rate of Action
Items
2013 Target - 90% 

   

85% 90% 
Successful accomplish-
ment of Action Items
identified in project plans
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5-YEAR OPERATIONAL
& FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
AT A GLANCE
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EARNINGS & DIVIDENDS PER SHARE 
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2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

 $2.37   $2.49  

 $1.15  
 $1.26   $1.14  

 $1.47  
 $1.59  

 $0.79   $0.77  

 $0.35  

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

 $
17

.2
  

 $
18

.7
  

 $
18

.1
  

 $
17

.6
  

 $
8.

0 
 

 $
27

.8
  

 $
29

.2
  

 $
26

.3
  

 $
28

.8
  

 $
26

.2
  

DIVIDENDS/PROFIT AFTER TAX (EC$ Millions)

Dividends Profit After Tax 

DEBT/EQUITY RATIOS

0 

20 

40 

60 

80 

100 

120 

04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 (%

) 

Year 
Debt Equity 

(2 for 1 stock split in 2011)



LUCELEC ANNUAL REPORT
LUCELEC ANNUAL REPORT 2013

08 THE VALUE OF ELECTRICITY

2013 FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS
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How the LUCELEC $ was spent 

Payroll costs 

Fuel and lubricants 

Purchase of fixed assets 

Debt servicing 

Dividends 

Payments to Government 

Operations 

Sale of Electricity 

Proceeds from disposal of assets 

Investment income 

Consumer contributions and deposits 
Sundry sales 

   
         $’000     cents
Sale of Electricity    325,406       98.5
Proceeds from disposal of assets           15         0.0
Consumer contributions and deposits     2,726         0.8
Investment income          899         0.3
Sundry sales        1,347         0.4
     330,393     100.0



In St. Lucia, the end of the year 2013 brought back memories of 2010 

when Hurricane Tomas demonstrated the “power of nature” with its 

attendant massive destruction of infrastructure and loss of life.  On 

December 24, 2013, a “low level, high impact” trough system 

unleashed heavy rains, causing flash flooding and landslides especially 

in the south of the island, resulting in extensive damage to houses, 

businesses, roads and other infrastructure.  Despite allied damage to 

LUCELEC’s transmission and distribution (T&D) network and flood 

damage to the Union Sub-Station, along with communication system 

failures, by December 26, 2013 all of the island’s electricity system had 

been restored. Once more LUCELEC’s management, staff and 

contractors demonstrated, as in 2010, their understanding of the value 

of electricity to St. Lucia and the power of their commitment to 

excellence and to serve.
 

The Global Challenges Facing Electric Power Companies

One of the major issues both large interconnected and small island 

electric power utilities across the world face at this juncture is whether 

within a decade or two they would become primarily operators of the 

T&D networks.  Much of this genuine concern revolves around the 

increasingly rapid penetration of renewable energy primarily driven, for 

the moment, by photovoltaic (PV) and wind systems.  This has been 

supported by significant research and development in “green energy”, 

allied with sizeable subsidies financed by the governments of the 

developed countries and, the parallel emergence of new “green 

energy” suppliers.  Compounding these developments have been the 

increased focus primarily in the developed countries on electricity 

demand-side management strategies, e.g. switching to light emitting 

diode (LED) bulbs which while being higher in cost than conventional 

bulbs, last much longer, provide much more light, and, above all, use 

much less electricity.  Additionally, enhanced efficiency of 

electricity driven equipment, such as air 

conditioning (AC) systems, refrigerators and 

other appliances have contributed to 

reduced electricity demand.
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CHAIRMAN’S
REPORT

diversification of power generation, either 
in joint ventures with partners or sole 
owner as appropriate, will define a
new structure of the electricity sector 
Dr. Trevor A. Byer Acc. Dir. – Chairman



contributing factor to this sizeable loss in market value has 

been the effect of the global recession in reducing demand for 

electricity in the industrial, commercial and domestic sectors.  

This “knock-on” effect has also been observed among most of 

the electricity companies in the Caribbean.

Another very important issue in the major continental countries 

of North, Central & South America as well as Western and 

Eastern Europe is power interconnection both between 

neighbouring countries in Central and South America and 

between States and across national borders in North America 

and Europe.  For example, with the very sizeable penetration of 

intermittent wind and PV supply in Germany, at various periods 

of the year it imports hydro electricity from Switzerland, 

nuclear power from France and residual imports from Italy. 

This plays an important role in ensuring grid stability.

LUCELEC’s Major Challenges in the Immediate Future

Preparing for the new regulatory environment (the 

National Utilities Regulatory Commission) is 

one of the important challenges that the 

company faces as the scope, 
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But the push towards green energy has not been without 

consequences. A recent study by McKinsey1 indicated that 

industrial costs in Germany are already 19% higher and 

domestic costs 48% higher than the EU average.  In both 

cases, unless the subsidy structure is changed, costs will rise 

with “deindustrialization” becoming a real risk.  Concurrently, 

an article in The Economist2 noted that while in 2010 the EU’s 

Emissions Trading Scheme (ETS) Carbon spot price was about 

Euro 15/ton (US$20/ton), in 2014 this had declined to Euro 

5/ton (US$6.8/ton).

The EU climate policy has two main strands.  First, is the 

carbon market to raise the price of pollution.  Second, to 

accelerate investment, research and development in “green 

energy” with subsidies for wind and solar power.  The surge in 

“green energy” in Germany has been dramatic, but the subsidy 

cost has been greater than anyone expected – US$20 billion in 

2013, which equates to a massive Carbon price of Euro 

150-200/ton.  Additionally, the impact on the established major 

electricity companies has been much worse than expected. 

For example, the 20 largest European electric utilities have lost 

about Euro 500 billion in market value since 2008.  However, a 

1Financial Times, 16 February 2014, “Could France & Germany Create a Common Energy Policy”,

by Nick Butler.  2The Economist, 25 January 2014, “European Climate Policy”,

(U�L_HTWSL�VM�H�7=�Z`Z[LT�HUK�KPZWSH`��PUZL[��PUZ[HSSLK�H[�3<*,3,*�Z�=PL\_�-VY[�(KTPUPZ[YH[P]L�6MMPJL



transparency and independence of the proposed Commission 

unfold.  When established the Commission would have 

responsibility for determining the tariff structure and levels, as 

well as the quality of service delivered by LUCELEC and any 

independent power producers.  In this context, the scope, 

transparency and independence of the Commission would be 

key yardsticks by which it would be assessed.  

With the expected emergence of independent power 

producers in St. Lucia, diversification of power generation, 

either in joint ventures with partners or sole owner as 

appropriate, will define a new structure of the electricity sector 

and with it, the evolution of new issues for LUCELEC such as 

a potential role as grid operator.  Already, we are witnessing 

significant extra-regional technical and financial companies 

showing strong interest in supporting the emergence of wind, 

photovoltaic, geothermal, biomass and OTEC (Ocean Thermal 

Energy Conversion) systems in St. Lucia.  In this context, 

geothermal, biomass and OTEC provide firm power options 

with accompanying high reliability, in contrast to the 

intermittent power generated by wind and PVs.  This was 

very apparent at the Conference on renewable energy in the 

British Virgin Islands in February 2014, sponsored by Sir 

Richard Branson’s “Carbon War Room”, which envisages 

investments of about US$300 million in renewable energy in 

about 8 Caribbean islands, of which St. Lucia is one.

The other side of the coin to the supply side reforms is the role 

of Energy Efficiency (EE) and Demand Side Management 

(DSM).   The irony is that EE and DSM are the lowest cost 

measures that can be deployed to achieve reduction in the use 

of electricity, allied with this being achieved with higher 

efficiency.  Yet, in the Caribbean region these strategies have 

remained very much in the “background” of the energy reform 

thrust.  This has to be elevated to the front burner if we are to 

achieve significant reform in the region.  

One of the primary reasons for this very limited focus on EE and 

DSM in the region is that there are very few companies 

in the Caribbean that provide these services, 

despite the fact that this is a profitable 

sphere of activity in the energy 

sector, not requiring anywhere 

near the level of financial 

resources needed in the 

supply-side of the 

sector. 
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Dr. Trevor A. Byer – Chairman

An important supply-side issue that both LUCELEC and the 

Regulatory Commission would need to confront is assessing 

the Power Purchase Agreements (PPA’s) of companies that 

wish to sell renewable electricity to the company.  A PPA may 

propose low initial prices for capacity and energy but transfer 

most performance risks (for example, target availability) to the 

purchaser.  In this case the purchaser may pay a lot more for 

power procured under the PPA than under another PPA with 

higher initial prices but with more risk borne by the seller.  

Another of the supply-side issues which needs to be 

addressed between the islands in the Caribbean is electricity 

interconnection.  In 2010 the World Bank issued a report based 

on a study by Nexant on “Caribbean Regional Electricity 

Generation, Interconnection and Fuels Supply Strategy”.  One 

of the serious constraints that result in very high prices for 

electricity, especially in the Eastern Caribbean islands, is the 

absence of power interconnection between those islands in 

which the key parameters determining the price of power 

delivered to the importer are: water depths, distance and cost 

of the interconnection between the islands in question, and the 

primary energy source used in producing the electricity – 

whether hydro, geothermal, biomass, natural gas, diesel or 

heavy fuel oil. From a cursory overview, the interconnections 

which appear to offer the best opportunities for St. Lucia from 

technical and financial perspectives are from: northern 

Dominica to southern Guadeloupe and to northern Martinique, 

and, from southern Martinique to northern St. Lucia.  

Given the changing environment in which LUCELEC would 

operate, one of its key strategies is diversification.  This will be 

done through the establishment of a Subsidiary Holding 

Company (SHC).  Preliminary analyses and studies are 

underway to identify which business cases offer the best 

prospects of success.

Finally, given the diversification strategy which would be 

implemented during the next couple of years, it is imperative 

that the new organizational structure and the other Human 

Resources initiatives which support the strategies outlined in 

this report be of high priority.

I take the opportunity to thank the Board, Management and 

Staff for their efforts and support in the past year. I look 

forward to the continuation of that support as we seek to 

improve the value we provide to our customers.
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DIRECTORS



Dr. Trevor A. Byer Acc. Dir. – Chairman

Dr. Byer is an Energy Consultant.  He was appointed to the 
Board of Directors in December 2008, representing 
minority shareholders.  Dr. Byer holds an M.A. and Ph.D. in 
Nuclear Physics from Cambridge University.  He is the 
Chairman of the Board’s Strategic Planning and 
Investments Committee and a member of the Human 
Resource Committee.

Trevor M. Louisy, Acc. Dir. – Managing Director

Mr. Louisy was appointed to the Board on January 1, 2004 
and is the Managing Director of St. Lucia Electricity 
Services Limited. He has a B.Sc. in Electrical Engineering 
and is a member of the Board’s Human Resource and 
Strategic Planning and Investments Committees.
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Stephen Mc Namara

Mr. Mc Namara is a Senior Partner with the law firm of Mc 
Namara & Company, LUCELEC’s external legal advisors.  
He was appointed to the Board on October 27, 2005, 
representing minority shareholders.  Mr. Mc Namara 
became a Barrister at Law after attending Lincoln’s Inn – 
Inn of Court School of Law.  He is the Chairman of the 
Board’s Governance Committee and a member of the 
Human Resource Committee.

Matthew Lincoln Mathurin, Acc. Dir. 

Mr. Mathurin is the Director/Chief Executive Officer of the 
National Insurance Corporation and was appointed to the 
Board by that organisation on August 29, 2007.  He is a 
Fellow of the Chartered Association of Certified 
Accountants and holds an M.B.A. (with Distinction) from 
the Edinburgh Business School of Herriott Watt University.  
Mr. Mathurin is a member of the Board’s Audit and 
Strategic Planning and Investments Committees.

4Y��7L[LY�>PSSPHTZ
Mr. Peter Williams was appointed by Emera (St. Lucia) 
Limited to the Board of St. Lucia Electricity Services 
Limited on March 2, 2011.  Mr. Williams holds a B.Sc. in 
Mechanical Engineering, an M.Sc. in Electrical Power 
Systems and an M.B.A.   He is the Managing Director of 
Light & Power Holdings Ltd.  He is a member of the Board’s 
Audit and Strategic Planning and Investments Committees.

Ms. Sharon Christopher Acc. Dir.
Ms. Sharon Christopher joined the Board of the St. Lucia 
Electricity Services Limited on January 1, 2011. Ms. 
Christopher was appointed by First Citizens Bank where 
she is the Deputy Chief Executive Officer/Group Corporate 
Secretary. Ms. Christopher holds an LLB (Hons.), a Legal 
Education certificate (LEC) and an LLM in Corporate Law. 
She is the Chairman of the Board’s Human Resource 
Committee and a Member of the Governance Committee.
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Mr. Andre Chastanet O.B.E.
Mr. Andre Chastanet was appointed to the Board of St. 
Lucia Electricity Services Limited on November 30, 2012.  
He is a chartered accountant by profession and Fellow of 
the Association of Certified Chartered Accountants of the 
United Kingdom.  He is a member of the Board’s Audit and 
Strategic Planning and Investments Committees.

Mr. Larry Nath 
Mr. Larry Nath joined the Board of St. Lucia Electricity 
Services Limited on July 27, 2011.  He was appointed by 
First Citizens Bank Limited where he holds the position of 
Chief Executive Officer.  He holds a Bachelor of Business 
Administration and a Master of Science in Industrial 
Administration. He is a member of the Board’s Audit 
Committee.

Dr. Reginald Darius 

Dr. Reginald Darius was appointed by the Government of 
Saint Lucia to the Board of the St. Lucia Electricity Services 
Limited on October 2, 2012. He is the Permanent Secretary 
in the Ministry of Finance, Economic Affairs and Social 
Security. He graduated from the University of the West 
Indies with first class honours in Economics, holds an M.A 
in Economics from the University of Cambridge, and a 
Ph.D. in Economics from the University of Warwick.  He is a 
member of the Board’s Strategic Planning and Investments 
Committee.

+Y��4RHIP�>HSJV[[
Dr. Mkabi Walcott was appointed by the Castries City 
Council to the Board of St. Lucia Electricity Services 
Limited on April 2, 2012. She is a Doctor of Veterinary 
Medicine and a Quality Management Systems Specialist. 
She is a member of the Board’s Governance and Audit 
Committees.

Ms. Sarah McDonald 
Ms. Sarah McDonald was appointed by Emera (St. Lucia) 
Limited to the Board of St. Lucia Electricity Services 
Limited on January 12, 2013.  She graduated from 
Dalhousie Law School, Halifax and received her M.B.A. 
from St. Mary’s University, Halifax.  Ms MacDonald 
currently serves as President and Chief Executive Officer of 
both the Grand Bahama Power Company and ICD Utilities 
Limited, positions she has held since June 2011.

Ms. McDonald is a member of the Governance and Human 
Resource Committees of the Board.
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The Directors present their report for the year ended December 
31, 2013.

Principal Activities
The Company’s principal activities consist of the generation, 
transmission and distribution of electricity.  There were no 
significant changes to the nature of the Company’s activities 
during the year.

Directors
The Directors of the Company since the 48th Annual Share-
holders Meeting were:

Non-Executive Directors:
•  Dr. Trevor Byer       •  Mr. Matthew Lincoln Mathurin 
•  Mr. Stephen McNamara      •  Ms. Sharon Christopher
•  Mr. Peter Williams       •  Mr. Larry Nath 
•  Dr. Mkabi Walcott       •  Dr. Reginald Darius 
•  Mr. Andre Chastanet        •  Ms. Sarah McDonald 

Executive Director: Mr. Trevor Louisy

Financial Results
The Company sold 334.5 million kWhs of electricity, an 
increase of 1.2 million kWhs over the previous year attributable 
to negligible increases in Domestic, Commercial and Street 
Lights Sectors but partially offset by declines in the Hotel and 
Industrial sectors.  Total revenues were EC$333.1 million, a 
decrease of 3.4% over the previous year, mainly attributable to 
lower fuel costs which are recovered from customers (at no 
mark-up) through the Fuel Surcharge mechanism.

Net profit for the year was EC$26.2, which was a decline of 
9.0% compared to the previous year.

The Company achieved Earnings per Share of EC$1.14 which 
was 9.5% lower than in 20122.

Assets acquired during the year amounted to 
EC$28.2, comprising mainly improvements to 

the Transmission & Distribution network, 
the Automated Metering Infrastruc-

ture, Generator Overhauls and 
improvements to the new 

Customer Information 
System.

Dividends
The Board at its 164th Board Meeting held on November 30, 
2012 resolved to amend the dividend policy from a policy 
position of paying 70% of the Company’s adjusted after tax net 
profits as dividends, whereby payment of an annual dividend 
pay-out shall be determined annually by the Board taking into 
consideration the performance of the Company at the time and 
the future obligations of the Company. 

The Company paid an interim dividend in December 2013 of 
$0.35 per ordinary share.

In 2014, the Board of Directors will make a recommendation to 
the shareholders on the total dividend for the 2013 financial 
year.

Change in Auditors
In accordance with the Company policy to change the External 
Auditor on a periodic basis by open tender the shareholders at 
the Annual Meeting of Shareholders in May 2013 appointed PKF 
Professional Services as the statutory auditors for the period 
2013 - 2015.  The Directors wish to thank KPMG Eastern Carib-
bean for their services over the past several years.

State of Affairs
In the opinion of the Directors there were no significant changes 
in the state of affairs of the Company during the financial year.

Activities and Other Information
In March 2013, Directors attended a Strategic Planning Session 
to discuss the strategic positioning of the Company to meet 
future financial, technical and regulatory challenges.

In August 2013, the Board conducted its Annual Board Evalua-
tion exercise.  The primary focus of this session was to review the 
progress made from the 2012 evaluation.

Also conducted in August 2013, was the internal Board Training 
Session, which focussed on the understanding and management 
of an electric utility business. Individual Directors also attended 
specialized training in Corporate Governance.

Events Subsequent to Balance Sheet Date
Apart from matters discussed elsewhere in the Annual Report, 
the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which have 
arisen since December 31, 2013 that may significantly affect the 
operations of the entity or the results of those operations in 
subsequent financial years, or the state of affairs of the entity in 
future.

By order of the Board of Directors

Gillian S. French 
Company Secretary
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DIRECTORS’
REPORT

  2Restated 2012 results to reflect adjustments made in 2013 which relate to prior years.
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Trevor Louisy
B.Sc. (Electrical Engineering),

Acc. Dir.
Managing Director

Jonothan Edwards
FCCA, CGA

Financial Controller

Victor Emmanuel
B. Eng. (Electrical Engineering),

M.Sc. (Information Systems Engineering)
Business Development Manager

Goodwin d'Auvergne
B.Sc. (Electrical Engineering)

Chief Engineer 

Gary Eugene
M. Eng. (Electronics Engineering),
Registered Professional Engineer

System Control Engineer 

Francis Daniel
B.Sc. (Electrical Engineering),
MPM (Project Management)

Planning Manager (seconded to work with the MD
on the Company’s Strategic Business Plan)

Nicole Duboulay
B.A. (Psychology),

M.B.A. (Human Resource Management),
M.Sc. (Training and Performance Management), 
CHRP (Certified Human Resource Professional)

Human Resource Manager

Jennifa Flood-George
B.Sc. (Management Studies/Psychology)

Customer Service Manager
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Jevon Nathaniel
B.Sc. (Electrical Engineering),

M.Sc. (Computer Science)
Generation Engineer

Gilroy Pultie
B.Sc. (Electrical & Computer Engineering),

Certified Diploma Accounts & Finance (ACCA)
Transmission & Distribution Manager

Wynn Alexander
B.Sc. (Computer Science), M. Eng.

Internetworking, DipFM
Information Systems Manager

Gillian French
LLB (Hons) L.E.C. MRP (Telecommunications),

Acc. Dir., ACIS
General Counsel/Company Secretary

Ziva Phillips 
FCCA, B. Sc. (Economics and Accounting)

Finance and Accounts Manager

Callixta Branford
CGA

Internal Audit Manager

Roger Joseph
M.A. (International Communication & Development),

Diploma Mass Communication
Corporate Communications Manager



heartening that the areas showing greatest improvements are 

those which have the greatest and most direct impact on the 

customer.

Targets for the establishment of new business ventures, and 

the levels of completion on the action plans for human 

resource development and regulatory reform were not 

achieved although a significant amount of work was 

completed. The results in those areas are more reflective of the 

ambitious targets that had been set rather than the level of 

effort. The Company also fell short of the target for Return on 

Equity due to changes in the application of the accounting 

standards. The Board of Directors decided that the target for 

Employee Engagement and Satisfaction, previously set as a 

Corporate Target, was better suited as a department level 

target.

Sales growth remained flat reflecting the prevailing economic 

conditions in the country and more efficient use of electricity.

For 2014, the strategic themes remain relevant and given the 

projection for minimal growth in unit sales, operational 

excellence, efficiency and cost management will be critical to 

success.

Operational Performance

Achieving and maintaining operational excellence and 

efficiencies was not solely a desirable goal, but an imperative, 

given the prevailing local social and economic conditions.  It 

required the commitment of the entire company to coaxing the 

most out of an aging electricity system infrastructure and to 

improve work processes and the company culture.

As challenging a task as that was, perhaps the greatest test for 

the company came at the end of the year when the unusually 

heavy rains and severe lightning associated with a trough 

system affected the island on Christmas Eve causing extensive 

flooding and damage to infrastructure across the island.  

Approximately 15% of the customer base was left without 

power as a result of flooding at the Union Substation, broken or 

leaning poles, blown fuses, and failure of the 

communication systems in some areas. Despite 

power restoration efforts, particularly in the south 

of the island, being hampered by lack of 

access to vehicular traffic through certain 

areas, the company lived up to its 

Corporate Performance

In 2013 St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited (LUCELEC) 

continued its strategic thrust in five key areas: 

System Enhancement, Preparation for Regulatory Reform, 

Customer Care, Strategic Human Resource Development, and 

Corporate Diversification.  The overall objectives were to 

improve operational excellence and establish the framework 

for diversifying revenue streams for improved shareholder 

value.

The Company exceeded seven (7) of the eleven (11) targets3  

set at the beginning of the year registering improvements in 

fuel efficiency, system losses, all reliability indices, reduction in 

LUCELEC’s own use of electricity, customer satisfaction, and 

stakeholder and employee engagement. It is particularly 
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  3See table of 2013 Corporate Performance and 2014 Targets on page 4.



well-deserved reputation for emergency response excellence. 

Within 48 hours power had been restored to all customers 

affected.

These increasingly frequent natural disasters take a toll on the 

electricity infrastructure, challenge the resilience of the 

company and its staff, and place additional strain on the 

Company’s resources.  Further, the company’s excellent 

record in dealing with these catastrophes has created the 

expectation that whenever they occur, the company will be 

continually efficient at restoring power to the country.  It will be 

necessary, therefore, to ensure that the company maintains the 

capacity to satisfy these expectations given the value of 

electricity to the country’s socio-economic framework and 

opportunities for growth.

Technical Operations

During 2013, the Technical Division sought to reverse some of 

the setbacks that occurred over the past two (2) years when a 

number of major challenges were encountered including the 

failure of 66/11kV Inter bus Transformers at Praslin and 

Soufriere Substations in November 2011 and May 2012 

respectively. To this end, the Division focused on improving 

operational efficiencies and ensuring the best 

possible service quality to customers island 

wide. As a result of this approach, the 

division achieved a high level of 

success in meeting its targets 

despite the inter bus 

transformers remaining 

out of service. In fact, despite the constraints, system reliability 

for 2013 was on course to be the second best on record prior 

to the Christmas Eve trough.   Even so, the year-end SAIDI 

achievement of 8.69 hours (adjusted for a major event day) 

was significantly better than the target of 10.5 hours. 

The new engine (G10) which came online at the end of 2012 

and continuation of best practice maintenance strategies 

helped improved fuel efficiency and generation reliability 

during 2013.  Operations at the temporary Belle Plaine Power 

Station, which was set up to mitigate the loss of the Soufriere 

substation, proceeded satisfactorily throughout the year in the 

continuing effort to provide an improved quality of supply to 

Soufriere and environs.

An aggressive programme to investigate and replace aging 

meters paid off significantly in reducing System Losses to a 

record low of 8.82% at year end, and 6,000 more meters were 

transitioned to automatic billing.  

The strategic deployment of additional auto-reclosers and 

automated switches on the system prevented an average of 

2.1 outages per customer and contributed to improved 

reliability despite the major system constraints caused by the 

unavailability of the Praslin and Soufriere substations.  The 

Transmission & Distribution Department also enhanced its 
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Significant work was completed in updating and verifying the 

data in the company’s Geographic Information System (GIS) 

and in setting up a new distribution analysis software to 

facilitate better planning of the distribution network. 



In 2014 it is expected that new inter bus transformers will be 

commissioned at Soufriere and Praslin substations thereby 

restoring the system to its normal and more optimal 

configuration. This is expected to have a favourable impact on 

system reliability.

Update on Strategic Initiatives 

The Company’s Strategic Business Plan looking towards 2020 

identifies eight key strategic themes as the highest priorities for 

focused action by the Company over the next few years.  

These are: System Improvement and Enhancements (includes 

renewable energy), Preparing for Regulatory Reform, 

Corporate Diversification, Implementation of the Human 

Resource Strategic Plan, Developing a Culture of Customer 

Care, Cost Management and Reduction, Development of an 

Enterprise-wide Risk Management System, and Environmental 

Stewardship.

For 2013, the emphasis was on five of these themes and the 

updates on the initiatives associated with those are 

summarised below.

System Improvements and Enhancements (including 

renewable energy)

During the year the Company contracted a supplier for the 

manufacture of two inter bus transformers for the Soufriere 

and Praslin Substations.  These will be delivered to site and 

installed during the first half of 2014.   

A study was commissioned to identify a least cost fuel that will 

be used in the next phase of generation expansion.  This also 

included renewable energy sources.

The Company also commissioned a Tariff Study that provides 

valuable information to guide its decision making in the 

immediate term on possible tariff structures and the 

implications on the various customer groups.

Efforts continued at reducing the parasitic loading at the Cul 

De Sac Power Plant by installing LED lamps and reducing the 

energy consumption of the large ventilation motors.  This 

combined with other initiatives to be pursued in 2014 

will help reduce own use resulting in reduced fuel 

consumption and costs to customers. 

The Company worked with the 

Government of Saint Lucia in developing 

an RFP for renewable energy projects 
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capabilities to undertake maintenance in live conditions 

resulting in fewer planned outages for customers. 

For 2014, the System Control Department will replace the 

existing SCADA system with a smart grid platform with 

functions that include SCADA, an Energy Management 

System (EMS), a Generation Management System (GMS), a 

Distribution Management System (DMS) and an Outage 

Management System (OMS). Each component will leverage 

and incorporate information imported from existing supporting 

systems such as the Geographic Information System (GIS), 

Customer Information System (CIS), Advanced Metering 

Infrastructure (AMI), wireless fault finders, and protection 

devices. 

One major overhaul is planned for engine G7 in keeping with 

the requirements for improving efficiencies on the unit after 

20,000 running hours and reducing the risk of breakdowns.  

There is also a minor overhaul of the recently commissioned 

G10 engine as part of the requirements of the warranty 

provision of the unit.

Work will continue on upgrading the Castries Substation 

indoor 66 kV switchgear which has been in service for 20 

years.  A section of the 66 kV transmission line along the East 

Coast will be rebuilt closer to the road and corroded pole top 

hardware will be replaced in a number of areas in the ongoing 

effort to refurbish the ageing transmission network.  As well, 

efforts to balance the load on the distribution system and 

building staff capacity through additional training will continue.

Approximately seven thousand smart meters will be deployed 

as part of the continuing roll out of the AMI and the 

transitioning to automatic billing. 



and in pushing towards meaningful movement on the 

exploration of the geothermal potential in Soufriere.  These 

efforts are expected to generate results in 2014. The company 

also installed LED street lights of various types and from 

various manufacturers at its Cul De Sac power plant to test 

them under St. Lucia’s operating conditions, to inform 

decisions on transitioning the current stock of street lights to 

LEDs.  Preliminary work for the installation of a 75kW solar 

system at the Cul De Sac power plant was completed as well.  

In 2014 emphasis will be placed on completing the substation 

transformer replacements at Soufriere and Praslin.  An 

additional circuit breaker will be included at the Praslin 

Substation as part of this project that will provide greater 

flexibility in operating the Transmission System.   

Projects to develop the photovoltaic capacity on the 

Generation System, including a utility-scale solar power plant, 

will be pursued during the course of the year.

Preparing for Regulatory Reform

The Company continued preparations for the new regulatory 

environment through the efforts of the Regulatory Reform 

Team (RRT). The uncertainties surrounding this initiative was 

brought into sharp focus when the GOSL in 2013 announced 

the imminent development of a local Office of Utility Regulator 

(OUR) while still remaining committed to ECERA, the Eastern 

Caribbean Energy Regulatory Authority.  The RRT had to 

amend its original strategy.  However the Team remained 

focused on the fundamentals of training and education, 

stakeholder engagements, professional staff attachments and 

wider staff sensitization, and regular meetings with the Minister 

and GOSL technocrats.  

A competitive strategy to mitigate risk associated with a new 

regulatory environment was completed.  The company also 

partnered with CARILEC to host a regional seminar on “The 

Challenges and Opportunities of Regulation”. 

The Company also pursued a wide-ranging 

programme of engaging stakeholders at 

various levels to promote its 

position on regulation and the 

principles of good regulatory 

practice. Several members 

of staff were also 

exposed to 
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attachments at other regional utilities and regulators to get a 

better perspective of their operations and relationship between 

the various entities. 

2014 will see an expansion of stakeholder engagements, the 

roll out of public relations, customer care and education plans, 

continuous sensitization of staff, and a focused change 

management strategy to assist staff in the transitioning 

process.

Customer Care 

The project to implement the new Customer Information 

System (CIS) was completed in June 2013.  The Company is 

now positioned to provide enhanced customer care and 

services in many areas of its operations.  Customer Care staff 

have received the requisite training in the new system to 

enable them to make optimum use of the enhanced 

functionalities.  



In 2014, Leadership Training for the Management Team and 

Middle Management, and a Review of the Organisation 

Structure are priorities that will be pursued to continue to build 

upon the process of organizational alignment with the strategy.

Industrial Relations 

During the first quarter of 2013, the Company and the Civil 

Service Association (CSA) were able to finally agree on wage 

increases for the 2011 - 2013 collective agreement for the 

Grade One bargaining unit.  A few clauses remained 

outstanding, but both parties agreed to continue meetings and 

resolve these amicably early in the year, following the wage 

settlement.  Discussions continued until September 2013 

when agreement was finally reached on the new grade 

structure for that group. At the end of the year the agreement 

had not been signed as the Union withdrew its initial 

acceptance of the proposed grade structure.  The matter 

remained before the Labour Commissioner and as a result 

negotiations for the coming period (January 2014 – December 

2016) could not commence.

Negotiations with the National Workers Union (NWU) for the 

supervisors and professional staff in Grades 4 - 6 and Grades 7 - 9 

(i.e. middle management) commenced during the year.  Despite 

some differences regarding the number of bargaining units 

discussions continued amicably and at year end, both parties 

agreed to continue discussions in early 2014.
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Among other specific initiatives were a new and improved bill 

with a barcode to facilitate faster processing at customer 

service outlets, an expansion of automatic billing of customers 

through the advanced metering infrastructure, the introduction 

of the capability for customers to review their accounts online 

via the company’s website, and a series of face to face 

engagements with major customers to update them on the 

company’s main initiatives and to get their feedback on the 

company’s services.  The Company also increased the 

frequency and range of service quality surveys to obtain better 

feedback on customer satisfaction levels, to facilitate 

improved responsiveness.  In addition, the process for 

updating customers’ accounts with payments made via third 

party agencies saw a dramatic improvement, arising from the 

automatic upload of payment files directly to the new CIS.

In 2014 the major initiatives will include the development of a 

Benchmarking and Quality Action Plan, expansion of online 

services to customers to include direct payments to 

LUCELEC, training of front line staff and contractors in 

customer care, additional major customer engagements and 

the roll out of a customer incentive and appreciation 

programme. 

Corporate Diversification

In pursuit on its Corporate Diversification thrust extensive 

feasibility studies were carried out for a number of projects and 

solid business cases completed.  The Board of Directors 

approved the establishment of a subsidiary company to 

operationalize the Corporate Diversification strategy and 

pursue the projects already developed.  

In 2014, the subsidiary will be formally established and 

potentially profitable projects already developed will be 

undertaken by the new subsidiary company.

Human Resources (HR) Strategic Plan 

A major pillar of the execution of the company’s strategy is 

human resource development and in 2013 two foundational 

initiatives were accomplished. The Performance Management 

System was revised to ensure that corporate, departmental, 

and personal performance scorecards were aligned to the 

company’s strategy.  A culture change programme to similarly 

align the company culture to the strategy and core values was 

launched.  Both these initiatives included intensive training 

sessions for employees at all levels of the company.



Financial Operations

The Company has restated the 2012 results to reflect 

adjustments made in 2013 which relate to prior years.  Details 

of these adjustments are in the audited financial statements 

which are appended to this report  (See Note 33 in the Audited 

Financial Statements.).

Sales & Revenues

The Company recorded 0.3% growth in 2013 compared to a 

decline of 0.1% in 2012. This minimal increase is reflective of 

local economic conditions, heavily dependent on the tourism 

industry; an industry vulnerable to external conditions. 

Sales in the domestic, commercial and street lights sectors 

increased while the other sectors declined.  The domestic and 

commercial sectors increased by 0.4% each while the street 

lights sector grew by 3.7%. The Hotel Sector 

declined by 0.2% while the Industrial Sector 

experienced a drop of 0.3% when 

compared to 2012.  

Total revenues were 

EC$333.1M, a decrease of 

3.4% compared to the previous year’s achievement of 

EC$344.0M. This was mainly driven by lower tariffs due to 

reductions in fuel prices. The overall average tariff was 

EC$0.99, a reduction of 2.9% compared to that of the 

previous year (EC$1.02). Tariff movements reflect the effect of 

fuel price movements as the Company’s base tariff has not 

changed since 2005.  Fuel costs are passed through to 

customers with no mark up.

The average fuel cost per gallon for the year was EC$9.98, a 

reduction of 4.3% compared to that of 2012 which was 

EC$10.43 per gallon. 

Generation costs (excluding fuel costs) were lower than the 

previous year by 15.8% primarily due to a reduction in 

depreciation expense. Following a review of the useful life of 

the Company’s assets, depreciation rates were lowered to 

reflect the extension of the assets’ lives and plant 

maintenance costs.

Transmission and Distribution costs increased by 10.8% when 

compared to the prior year.  This was primarily as a result of 

depreciation of new assets put into use in the prior period and 

increased maintenance cost of the ageing infrastructure.

Administrative expenditures increased by EC$2.9M (10.3%) 

primarily due to increases in payroll costs of $2.0M. Compared 

to 2012 there was a reduction in labour costs capitalised as 

the implementation of the CIS was completed in 2012.  This 

contributed to $0.8M of the payroll variance. Other reasons for 

the increase include more overtime, annual salary increases, 

recruitment, and pension costs in 2013.   

Finance costs increased by EC$3.8M (40.5%) due to 

additional loan financing received in 2012. 

Profit

Profit before Tax of EC$35.9M was 7.3% lower than the 

EC$38.8M achieved the previous year due to higher operating, 

administrative and finance costs for 2013.

Profit after tax was EC$26.2M a decrease of 9.0% compared 

to the previous year’s achievement of EC$28.8M. 

Earnings Per Share for the year was EC$1.14 (2012 – EC$1.26) 

reflecting the lower net profit. 
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Self-Insurance

In 2012 the Board of Directors approved the formation of a 

non-profit company to carry out the business of the 

self-insurance of the Company’s assets. The establishment of 

the fund was not finalised by December 31, 2013. Therefore, 

the Company has established a Self-Insurance Reserve which 

is not available for distribution to the shareholders.

As at December 31, 2013 the fund’s balance was EC$21.3 

million (2012 - EC$17.7 million). The fund’s investments 

comprised of regional securities rated by regional or 

international agencies held at local banks on short term basis 

to provide quick access to cash if required. 

Credit Rating

A credit rating exercise was conducted by CariCRIS, the 

Caribbean credit rating agency at the end of 2013. CariCRIS 

reaffirmed the Company’s credit rating of CariBBB (Adequate), 

consistent with that of the Government of Saint Lucia. 

Risk Management

The Company maintains a Risk Register which, on a 

continuous basis, captures all identified risks to the Company 

and progress on mitigation measures. This register is reviewed 

by the Audit Committee of the Board at its regular meetings 

during the course of the year.

Fuel Price Hedging

The Company continued its fuel price hedging programme on 

a twelve month rolling basis for 75% of estimated volumes 

utilising Fixed Price Swaps.

In 2013, fuel prices that resulted from hedge placements were 

less volatile than would have obtained without the hedge. The 

fairly stable hedge prices placed for the year resulted in a 

similar trend for electricity prices over the period.

Shareholders’ Equity

The Company’s shares continued to trade at EC$25.  The 

issued ordinary shares of the Company now stands at 

22,920,000 shares.
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The Company achieved a rate of Return on Equity (ROE) of 

12.0% (2012 - 14.1%) reflecting a decline in performance from 

the previous year, but this performance remains in line with or 

above peers in the Caribbean.

The net profit for the year translated to 7.3% return on Fixed 

Assets based on historical costs (2012 - 8.0%) and 5.4% on 

Total Assets (2012 - 5.7%).

Retained Earnings increased from EC$107.6M to EC$122.8M 

and the Debt to Equity ratio was 42:58 (2012 – 47:53).

The Company’s shares traded at $25 per share, resulting in a 

price earnings (P/E) ratio of 21.9 times (2012 – 19.8 times). 

Capital Expenditure

Expenditure for the year amounted to EC$28.2M (2012 - 

EC$97.0M) which comprised mainly improvements to the 

Transmission & Distribution network, the Distributed 

Automation programme, the Automated Metering 

Infrastructure, generator overhauls and improvements to the 

new Customer Information System.

Working Capital Management

Management of Accounts Receivable remained a priority for 

the Company although becoming increasingly challenging 

given the local economic climate where some major customers 

have defaulted on payments.  The Days Sales Outstanding 

(DSO) was at 72 days compared to 69 days in 2012. 

With respect to its largest debtor, the company has entered 

into a financing arrangement and the agreed payment 

schedule has been consistently maintained since the signing of 

this agreement. Other accounts continue to be monitored on 

an on-going basis.  

Capital Financing

The Company continued to operate within the limits stipulated 

under the debt covenants in Security Sharing Agreements 

(SSA) with its lenders which, among other provisions, set the 

maximum level of debt that the Company is allowed to 

undertake.   



Outlook

Electricity sales were lower than anticipated as a result of the 

effects of the continuing global economic crises that 

commenced in 2008. In order to minimise the impact, the 

Company has plans to reduce its operating costs while 

maintaining an acceptable efficiency level.  It will continue its 

corporate diversification strategy and it is anticipated that 

implementation will begin in 2014.  

An increase of 0.68%% in sales is projected for 2014. Minimal 

growth in the hotel sector is anticipated while the level of 

increase recorded in Street Lighting is not likely to carry over 

into 2014 as the Government of Saint Lucia (GOSL) actively 

continues to pursue electricity cost reduction initiatives. Little 

or no organic growth is expected in the commercial and 

industrial sectors while the domestic sector is expected to 

realize small gains from the acceleration of an island-wide 

meter replacement programme. 

These projections may be impacted by an increasingly 

challenging economic environment.  

The Company will continue to focus on the strategic initiatives 

approved by the Board.  

These include:

•  Network Improvement - replacing the Interbus transformers 

at Praslin and Soufriere Substations, replacement of the 

SCADA system, and replacement of faulty meters alongside 

the deployment of AMI meters.

• Renewable Energy – Commencement of work on the 

development of a 3MW Solar PV farm. 

• Corporate Diversification – use of the Company’s existing 

asset base and skill sets to expand revenue opportunities. It 

should be noted that any such transactions will be governed 

by an “Inter-Affiliate Code of Conduct” to ensure that 

regulated assets and resources paid for by electricity 

customers are not used to benefit 

shareholders.  
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• Preparation for the New Regulatory Environment – becoming 

experts in regulatory frameworks for small island utility 

companies.

• Customer Care – the leveraging of the new CIS system to 

offer a seamless customer experience.

• HR Strategic Plan – reviewing the organisational structure to 

align with the new Strategic Business Plan, and placing 

emphasis on leadership development, changing the 

Company’s culture and improved operational efficiencies.

Conclusion

Continuing uncertainties in the regulatory and economic 

operating environments make long range planning extremely 

risky.   Nonetheless, the Company understands the value of 

electricity, its role in ensuring that value, and its responsibility 

for meeting the country’s demand for electricity.  The Company 

will continue to balance its pursuit of operational excellence 

with prudent planning taking into consideration the realities of 

the prevailing socio-economic conditions. 



Support for registered non-profit organisations and events and 

activities that are not money-making is provided under the 

ambit of the LUCELEC Trust Company Inc., a non-profit 

company funded through a Deed of Covenant between the St. 

Lucia Electricity Services Limited (LUCELEC) as the Donor and 

the Trust.  It was set up expressly for the purpose of providing 

financial assistance or purchasing items and/or property to aid 

any legitimate non-political entity falling within the following 

categories: religious, charitable, medical, educational 

institution, sporting body, fund of a public character approved 

by Cabinet, and the Loan Fund established under the Further 

Education (Loan Fund) Act. 

Information on of some of the sponsorships and donations 

made during 2013 are provided below.

Tourism

LUCELEC’s support for tourism related initiatives stem from 

the appreciation of the vital role that the sector plays as one of 

the main drivers of economic activity in the country.   

LUCELEC supported events at the local level that help develop 

and nurture the industry such as staff recognition awards at 

the various tourism enterprises and the Chefs in Schools 

Programme. The company supported as well events that help 

bring international recognition and acclaim to St. Lucia and 

help drive the island’s overall tourism promotional and 

development efforts such as the Health and Wellness Retreat, 

the Rhythm and Spice Festival, the Atlantic Rally for Cruisers 

(ARC) and St. Lucia Jazz.  

As a major sponsor of St. Lucia Jazz at Pigeon Island Main 

Stage and several community jazz shows in other parts of the 

island - Tea Time Jazz (at La Place Carenage), Jazz on the Bay 

(Marigot Bay), Jazz in the South, Jazz on the Grill, and Fond 

d’Or Jazz – LUCELEC continues to help ensure that the St. 

Lucia Jazz achieves its objectives and spur economic activity. 

Business

LUCELEC continues to support initiatives that seek to develop 

and grow the private sector, especially in the push 

towards international standards of product and 

service excellence.  In 2013, the St. Lucia 

Manufacturers' Association Quality Awards 

Programme, the St. Lucia Chamber of 

Some of LUCELEC’s Corporate Social Responsibility would 

have been covered in the preceding sections of this report as 

theCompany embraces the concept of Corporate Social 

Responsibility in its broadest sense and considers sustainable 

development as a whole.  This is reflected in its organizational 

governance, respect for human rights, labour practices, care 

for the environment and consumer issues, fair operating 

practices, and community involvement and development. This 

section focuses on the Company’s corporate philanthropy and 

details how, through its various interventions, it is energizing 

the nation’s success.

LUCELEC has two main vehicles through which the Company 

manages its corporate philanthropy.  Support for businesses, 

for-profit events and activities, and organisations that are not 

registered as non-profit is provided directly through LUCELEC.  

Developing and supporting young minds
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Commerce Industry & Agriculture’s St. Lucia Business Awards, 

and St. Lucia Industrial & Small Business Association (SLISBA) 

National Small, Medium & Micro Enterprise Awards, all 

received funding support from LUCELEC.

Education

LUCELEC believes that education is the foundation on which 

the nation’s success is built, and a significant component of 

the sponsorships and donations the Company makes are 

directed towards improving educational 

infrastructure, supporting educational 

programmes and campaign that seek 

to provide diverse experiences to 

students, and helping to 

ensure that students can 

achieve their maximum 

potential.  

And this support for education spans the length and breadth of 

the country.  

At the national level, the Company supported the Ministry of 

Education’s Awards of Excellence Ceremony that recognises 

outstanding academic achievements across the school 

system.   

In 2013 Early Childhood Education was a main theme for 

support.  Funding assistance was provided to the Roving Care 

Givers programme designed to provide access to early 

childhood development interventions for children and parents 

in disadvantaged communities.  

Funding support was provided as well for training in phonics 

for primary school students, to provide books to schools and 

promote literacy, for a remedial reading programme for 

students in the early stages of primary to improve literacy, and 

LUCELEC ANNUAL REPORT
LUCELEC ANNUAL REPORT 2013

29THE VALUE OF ELECTRICITY

Support for the Rainforest of Reading programme aimed at encouraging primary school children to read more 



the Jennes Kwéyòl Pageant which encourages secondary 

school students to celebrate the island’s creole heritage; and 

the Cultural Development Foundation (CDF) received support 

for the National Arts Festival involving a series of visual and 

performing arts across several communities.  

Similarly, the St. Lucia Arts Festival Company’s WORDALIVE 

International Literary Festival, several calypso tents, steel 

bands and Carnival bands, a production of Derek Walcott's 

“Oh Starry Starry Night” and workshops on dance, music and 

visual arts for tutors and children with special needs received 

varying levels of assistance from LUCELEC.  

The Company was also a major contributor to the National 

Festival of Lights which heralds in the start of National Day and 

Christmas festivities across the island.

Sports

LUCELEC provides a great deal of support to sport as it is a 

fundamental aspect of school and community life and provides 

a number of benefits.  The company assists clubs and 

associations with participation in and the hosting of local, 

regional and international tournaments.  It assists individual 

schools and the education districts with putting on their 

respective annual meets as well.  The overall aim is to 

contribute meaningfully to the development of sport on the 

island and to provide avenues for young people to develop 

their respective talents and to excel. Our support provides path 

ways from grass roots competitions to National and 

International representation. 

LUCELEC was the main sponsor for the National School 

Sports programme which included inter-school competitions in 

football, netball, basketball, cricket, athletics and tennis.  The 

Company provided funding support to national sporting 

associations to either host or participate in regional 

tournaments for volleyball, netball, boxing, table tennis, rugby, 

squash, and swimming.  And funding for the Castries Football 

Council’s 8-week Youth Football Fiesta as well as for summer 

camps for underprivileged children and for the differently 

abled continued.

for a workshop to help teachers understand the critical issues 

associated with students with special needs. 

At the secondary and tertiary levels, the Company continued 

to support graduation exercises, language immersion trips 

and practicums for students and annual sports meets.  The 

Company also made good on a commitment to donate 

$300,000 to the Sir Arthur Lewis Community College for the 

refurbishment and upgrading of the electronics laboratory.  

Work on that project started in 2013.

LUCELEC was also a major sponsor of the Junior 

Achievement Company Programme at the Choiseul 

Secondary School and with the Company’s help the school 

placed second in the Company of the Year category. As well, 

the Company assisted the school in ensuring that the team 

was able to attend the Junior Achievement Company of the 

Americas Competition in South America.

Arts & Culture

LUCELEC was also active in Arts and Culture as the Company 

sought to contribute not only to the propagation of St. Lucia’s 

culture, but also to provide critical support to the development 

of cultural products to help jump start the country’s fledgling 

cultural industries.  So the Choiseul Development Foundation 

got support for its Annual Choiseul Arts & Craft Festival "Blotje 

en Choiseul"; the Folk Research Centre (FRC) got support for 
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Corporate Philanthropy

LUCELEC supports a myriad of charitable institutions through 

the LUCELEC Trust which manages its donations. Several 

interventions were made to non-profit organisations in 

support of fundraising efforts, to provide equipment, to 

improve facilities, and to feed the underprivileged. Several 

religious and faith based organisations also received 

assistance towards meeting the increased demand for the 

services offered by these institutions.   

The Company has also seen an increasing number of its staff 

stepping up to volunteer their time and initiate activities to 

provide support to vulnerable groups in their communities.  In 

2013, the Customer Service Department staff at the Vieux Fort 

office together with colleagues in the south of the island 

spearheaded a Community Soup Kitchen to feed the sick and 

shut-in, elderly living alone and the homeless in the 

community.  And the Generation Department was formerly 

recognised with a National Award of Excellence for 

Outstanding Contribution Towards the Education Sector for 

its work at the Lady Gordon Opportunity Centre 

(in Ciceron) where a core group of thirteen 

(13) members of staff, supported by 

the other members of the 

department as needed, have 

volunteered since 2010.

Youth at Risk/Youth Development

Several interventions to assist youth at risk were supported 

during 2013.  Many of these were youth camps during the 

Easter and summer vacations in an effort to keep these youth 

at risk occupied with productive activity and to provide 

opportunities that they may not otherwise have had. The 

various homes for youth at risk also received assistance from 

LUCELEC including the Vieux Fort Children's Society, the Holy 

Family Children's Home, the Dunnottar School and the Upton 

Gardens Girls Centre.

Health & Wellness

Consistent with LUCELEC’s own focus on safety, health and 

wellness for its employees, the Company extended its support 

to the wider community in those areas as well. The Company 

supports the National Community Foundation with an annual 

donation to support persons seeking assistance with medical 

interventions.  The Company also supported various health 

and wellness organisations and support groups such as the 

St. Lucia Diabetes & Hypertensive Association, Faces of 

Cancer and the Caribbean Organization of Sickle Cell 

Associations with various activities to create awareness of 

health issues and provide services and support to vulnerable 

groups and individuals.

In 2013, the St. Lucia Diabetes & Hypertensive Association 

publicly recognised the Company for its assistance as a 

regular donor over the years.  
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Partnering with other organisations to increase awareness of Cancer



And at Christmas time, LUCELEC supports various agencies, 

organisations and groups in their Christmas outreach to assist 

day-care and pre-schools, the unemployed, senior homes, 

hospitals and underprivileged children with subsidies and food 

hampers.   

Environmental Responsibility 

The Company takes active steps within its operations to 

minimise impact on the environment.  In 2013, although two oil 

spills got outside the containment areas at the Cul De Sac 

compound, no environmental damage resulted. The company 

also increased use of shielded conductors in wooded areas to 

minimise tree trimming. 

LUCELEC also actively supports several initiatives that 

promote environmental sustainability in its various forms 

including the St. Lucia National Trust Youth Environment 

Forum (YEF), and the Caribbean Student Environmental 

Alliance’s Rainforest Reef Camp that teaches young people 

how to clean up and protect watersheds and coral reefs within 

their respective communities.

Conclusion

LUCELEC’s corporate social responsibility seeks to add value 

to a wide spectrum of St. Lucian society. LUCELEC’s 

interventions made it possible for several projects, events and 

initiatives to be undertaken.  With an estimated impact of over 

400,000 primary and secondary beneficiaries these 

interventions are building the foundation for St. Lucia’s 

success decades into the future.  

Charitable Contributions

For the last few years the National Council of & for Persons 

with Disabilities hosts an annual Camp Lajwa where for a few 

days it takes some of the persons with disabilities, particularly 

those who are generally house-bound, on various outings to 

experience the outdoors and other aspects of St. Lucian life.  

And for the last few years LUCELEC has been a staunch 

supporter of the initiative, because it is activities such as these 

that energise the heart and soul of a nation and add value to 

the relationship that LUCELEC enjoys with the community.  

Other agencies with a similar charitable mandate also get 

assistance from LUCELEC in meeting the needs of their 

respective clientele.   There is the St Lucia Crisis Centre, the St. 

Lucia Blind Welfare Association, the Salvation Army, the 

Ex-Service Men and Women’s League, the various Rotary 

Clubs, the Friends of St. Jude Hospital, the St.Lucia Renal 

Association, the Marian Home and the Adelaide Home.  All of 

them benefited from LUCELEC support during 2013.  

The Company also supports various feeding programmes at 

schools and within the community with regular contributions 

directly to schools and through agencies like Feed the Poor 

Ministry Inc. and the St. Benedict’s Centre Parish office.   
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Christmas Party for children of Choiseul in collaboration with St. Lucia 
National Organization for Women (St. Lucia NOW)



Our contribution to education, through libraries, IT support 

and after-school programmes are giving more children 

access to the knowledge that will propel them forward in life.

How Do You
Measure

Empowering immeasurable values
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THE YEAR IN
PICTURES

Warming up for health and safety walk
Walking is fun

Gros Piton climb was not fun for all

Acquiring new skills for the
tasks ahead

Training in core values

Recognizing academic excellence
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Cabinet of Ministers tour
Cul de Sac facility

Jounen Kweyol treat for
customers

Jounen Kweyol treat for staff

Sharing the vision

Getting the vision

Support for primary school reading
to improve literacy
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THE YEAR IN
PICTURES

Support for tourism development -
Health and Wellness retreat Generation staff volunteer

at Lady Gordon Opportunity Centre

Testing LED street lights
at Cul de Sac facility

Staff-initiated soup kitchen
for needy in the south of
the islandLUCELEC meets Buckeye

Wearing blue for diabetes awareness
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Restoring Union substation
after Christmas Eve troughStaff provide the entertainment

at the annual Christmas party

Supporting excellence
in business

Brunch follows 
Thanksgiving mass

Annual Thanksgiving mass for staff

Board of Directors
sign Code of Ethics

Annual staff Christmas party



How Do You
Measure

LUCELEC works around the clock to 

bring you the electricity that enables

life’s entertaining moments.
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PKF Professional Services 
 
Tel. (758) 453 - 2340 
Tel. (758) 450 - 7777 
Fax (758) 451 - 3079 
Email: pkf@candw.lc 

  

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

To the Shareholders of St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2013, and the statement of changes in 
equity, statement of comprehensive income, and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  The financial statements 
for the year ended December 31, 2012 were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified 
opinion on those financial statements on March 8, 2013. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements  

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing.  Those standards require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited as at December 31, 2013, and its financial performance and its 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. 

 

Chartered Accountants 
Castries, Saint Lucia 
March 7, 2014 

Accountants &
business advisers
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2013

2012 

Restated  
2011

Restated

   
  

598,128,9  199,350,51917,885,51

  166,163
361,074,750 366,721,818  300,869,597

  
203,352,12  925,861,91249,510,21

-  509,027,4-
124,071,142 138,155,689  123,812,636

424,682,233
   
   

364,646,001  697,826,701330,187,221
3,430,000 4,632,000  3,117,000

571,742,41  925,177,71766,551,12 

  
   

056,593,321  001,797,761755,270,351
740,178,31  088,077,41589,445,51
428,352,03  345,644,73693,347,73

208,146,908 221,892,721      169,316,662
  

927,469,11     474,362,51933,878,41

394,044,11    003,890,11769,133
651,829,2         -              341,423,4

257,616,

Approved on behalf of the Board of Directors:          

 rotceriD  rotceriD
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 Notes  2013  
2012

Restated  
      
Revenue      

 626,462,813  946,437,823$  selas ygrenE
 722,380,22  620,271,1    egrahcrus leuF

  966,602,3   eunever rehtO 3,677,174  
    333,113,344  344,025,027  

      
Operating expenses      
Fuel cost at base pric 946,210,491   e   187,235,821  

 651,470,22  269,743,1   esab revo tsoc leuF
 582,912,13  205,606,43   noitubirtsid dna noissimsnarT
 308,198,62  721,356,22   noitareneG
 560,124,762  042,026,252  62  
       

Gross income   80,493,104  76,603,962  
)456,594,82( ) 157,524,13(  62 sesnepxe evitartsinimdA

Operating profit   49,067,353  48,108,308  
 678,66  758,56  12 ten ,sniag rehtO

Profit before finance costs and taxation   49,133,210  48,175,184  
)536,883,9( ) 629,981,31(   ten ,stsoc ecnaniF

Profit before taxation   35,943,284  38,786,549  
)269,179,9( ) 304,517,9(  22 noitaxaT

Net profit for the year   26,227,881  28,814,587  

Other comprehensive income:     

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:     
Re-measurements of defined benefit pension plans, net 

 005,558 ) 505,178( 22     xat fo

Total comprehensive income for the year  $ 25,356,376  29,670,087  

Earnings per share 24 $ 1.14  1.26  
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 
(Expressed In Eastern Caribbean Dollars) 
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  Notes  
 

2013   

Cash flows from operating activities 

   482,349,53$ noitaxat erofeb tiforP
Adjustments for      :

   839,976,03  6 noitaicerpeD 

   629,981,31   desnepxe stsoc ecnaniF 
   530,502,1 tnemriapmi rof ecnawolla ni tnemevoM 

  ) 532,531( stifeneb tnemeriter-tsoP 

   785,251,7  seirotnevni ni esaerceD 
 Increase in trade, other receivables and 
 (Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables  
 Cash generated from operations    545,386,76  

   870,998  deviecer tseretnI 
  ) 922,129,31(  diap stsoc ecnaniF 
   -  diap xat emocnI 

Net cash from operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Acquisition of property, plant and equi
Proceeds from disposal of property, pl

  ) 042,054,2(  7 stessa elbignatni fo noitisiuqcA
Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 

    

   -  sgniworrob morf sdeecorP
  ) 419,250,51(  sgniworrob fo tnemyapeR
  ) 333,887,81(  diap sdnediviD

Consumer deposits received    397,745  )ten(
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities 

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 12
 
 
  
 

 
54,661,394
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 St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated under the laws of 

Saint Lucia on November 9, 1964 and re-registered as a public company on August 11, 1994.  
The Company was continued under the Companies Act 1996 of Saint Lucia on October 22, 
1997.  The Company operates under the Electricity Supply Act, 1994 (as amended), and is 
granted an exclusive license for the exercise and performance of functions relating to the 
generation, transmission, distribution and sale of electricity in Saint Lucia. It is listed on the 
Eastern Caribbean Securities Exchange. 
The Company’s registered office and principal place of business is situated at Sans Soucis, 
John Compton Highway, Castries, Saint Lucia. 

 

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(“IASB”). 

 
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on March 7, 
2014. 

 Basis of measurement 

 The financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost basis except for 
available-for-sale financial assets that are measured at fair value.  The methods used to 
measure fair value are discussed further in Note 4. 

 
 Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Eastern Caribbean dollars, which is the 
Company’s functional currency.  All financial information has been rounded to the nearest 
dollar. 

 

 Use of estimates and judgments 

 

 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to 
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies 
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.  Actual results may 
differ from those estimates.   

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in 
any future periods affected. 

 

 In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical 
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:  

es of property, plant and equipment 
Note 3(d)(iii):   Estimated useful lives of intangible assets 
Note 3(h):  Measurement of defined benefit obligations 
Note 3(i):  Estimation of unbilled sales and fuel surcharge 
Note 4:  Determination of fair values 
Note 28:  Valuation of financial instruments 

LUCELEC ANNUAL REPORT 2013

•
•
•
•
•
•



ST. LUCIA ELECTRICITY SERVICES LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 
(Expressed In Eastern Caribbean Dollars) 
 

 

47

 

 

  3. Significant Accounting Policies 

  

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all years presented in  
these financial statements. 
 

   (a) Foreign currency 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the Company’s functional currency at the 
foreign exchange rates at the date of the transaction.  Monetary assets and liabilities denominated 
in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to the functional currency at the foreign 
exchange rate at that date.  The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference 
between amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for 
effective interest and payments during the period, and the amortized cost in foreign currency 
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the period.  Non-monetary items that are measured in 
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of 
the initial transactions.  Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are 
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.  The gain or loss 
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the 
recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on 
items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss 
are also recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss respectively). 
 

(b) Financial instruments 

(i)  Non-derivative financial instruments 

 Non-derivative financial instruments comprise available-for-sale financial assets, trade and other 
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, borrowings, trade and other payables and consumer 
deposits. 

  
 Non-derivative financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value plus, for instruments not 

at fair value through profit or loss, any directly attributable transaction costs.  Subsequent to 
initial recognition, non-derivative financial instruments are measured as described below. 

 
Available-for-sale financial assets 

The Company’s investment in equity securities are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.  
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein, other than 
impairment losses (see Note 3(f)), and foreign exchange gains and losses on available-for-sale 
equity instruments (see Note 3(a)), are recognized in other comprehensive income and presented 
within equity in the fair value reserve.  When an investment is derecognized, the cumulative gain 
or loss in other comprehensive income is transferred to profit or loss.   
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  3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d) 

 
(b)      Financial instruments (Cont’d) 

(i)   Non-derivative financial instruments (Cont’d) 

 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and demand deposits.  Bank overdrafts that are 
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management are included 
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows. 

 
 Accounting for finance income and expense is discussed in Note 3 (j). 

 

Trade and other receivables 

 Trade and other receivables are carried initially at fair value and subsequently measured at 
amortized cost less a provision for impairment.  A provision for impairment of trade and other 
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to 
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivable.  The amount of the 
provision is recognised in profit or loss. 

 
 Trade and other receivables, being short term, are not discounted. 

   
 Trade and other payables 

 Liabilities for trade and other payables which are normally settled on 30 – 90 day terms and  
conditions are carried at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future 
for goods and services received whether or not billed to the Company. 

 
 Borrowings  

 Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, being their issue proceeds, net of transaction 
costs incurred.  Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortized cost; any difference between the 
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over 
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method. 

 
 Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to 

defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve (12) months after the date of the statement of 
financial position. 

 
 Consumer deposits 

 Given the long-term nature of the customer relationship in accordance with the provisions of the 
Electricity Supply Act, 1994 (as amended), customer deposits are shown in the statement of 
financial position as non-current liabilities (i.e. not likely to be repaid within twelve months of the 
date of the statement of financial position). 
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3.    Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d) 

 
(b)  Financial instruments (Cont’d) 

(ii)   Share capital 
 Ordinary shares 

 Ordinary shares are classified as equity.  Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of 
ordinary shares and share options are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax 
effects. 

 

(c)     Property, plant and equipment 

 (i)  Recognition and measurement 

 Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment losses.  

 
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.  The cost 
of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs 
directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, and the 
costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located.  
Cost also may include transfers from equity of any gain or loss on qualifying cash flow 
hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.  Purchased software 
that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of that 
equipment.   
 
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 
 

 The gain or loss on the disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by 
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of the item and is recognized 
net within “other gains” in profit or loss.  

 
(ii)  Subsequent expenditure 

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the 
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied 
within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably.  The carrying 
amount of the replaced part is derecognized.  The costs of the day-to-day servicing of 
property, plant and equipment are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.  
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   3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d) 

 
(c)  Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d) 

(iii) Depreciation 

Depreciation is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over 
the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment.  Leased assets 
are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably 
certain that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.  Land and way leave 
rights are not depreciated.  No depreciation is provided on work-in-progress until the assets 
involved have been completed and are available for use.   

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date. 
 
Further to the annual review, the annual rates have been revised as follows:  
     2013    2012 
� Building   21/2 % - 121/2% per annum 21/2 % -121/2% per annum 
� Plant and machinery 4% - 10% per annum  5% - 14% per annum 
� Generator overhauls 331/3% per annum  331/3% per annum 
� Motor vehicles  20% - 331/3% per annum 20% - 331/3% per annum 
� Furniture and fittings 10% per annum   10% - 25% per annum 
� Computer hardware 20% per annum   121/2%- 25% per annum 

 
(d) Intangible assets  

(i) Recognition and measurement 
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company and have finite useful lives are measured at 
cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.  

(ii) Subsequent expenditure  

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits 
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in profit or 
loss as incurred.  

(iii) Amortization  

Amortization is calculated over the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its 
residual value.  Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of intangible assets, other than way leave rights, from the date that they are 
available for use, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the 
future economic benefits embodied in the asset. Further to the annual review, the estimated useful 
lives for the assets (computer software) that are amortized have been revised to five (5) years and 
eight (8) years (2012 - four (4) to five (5) years).  
 
Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year- end 
and adjusted if appropriate.  
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  3.        Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d) 

 

 Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and replacement value.  The cost of inventories is 
based on the weighted average principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the 
inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their 
existing location and condition. Cost may also include transfers from other comprehensive 
income of any gain or loss on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of 
inventories.  Allowance is made for slow-moving and damaged goods. Goods in transit are stated 
at their invoice cost. 

 
 (f)  Impairment  

(i)  Financial assets 
 A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective 

evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence 
indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of 
that asset. 

 An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the 
difference between its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows 
discounted at the original effective interest rate. An impairment loss in respect of an available-
for-sale financial asset is calculated by reference to its fair value. 

 Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The 
remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk 
characteristics. 

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the 
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows 
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and 
reflected in an allowance account against receivables. Interest on the impaired asset continues to 
be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the 
amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit 
or loss.  

Impairment losses on available-for-sale investment securities are recognised by transferring the 
cumulative loss that has been recognised in other comprehensive income, and presented in the 
fair value reserve in equity, to profit or loss. The cumulative loss that is removed from other 
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition 
cost, net of any principal repayment and amortisation, and the current fair value, less any 
impairment loss previously recognised in profit or loss. Changes in impairment provisions 
attributable to time value are reflected as a component of interest income. 

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale debt security increases 
and the increase can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was 
recognised in profit or loss, then the impairment is reversed, with the amount of the reversal 
recognised in profit or loss.  However, any subsequent recovery in the fair value of an impaired 
available-for-sale equity security is recognised in other comprehensive income. 
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d) 

 
(f)  Impairment (Cont’d) 

 (ii)  Non-financial assets 
 The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories, are reviewed 

at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such 
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.  

 
 The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its 

fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of 
impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates 
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets 
or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”).  

 
 An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit 

exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. 
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the 
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of 
the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis. 

  
 In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each 

reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment 
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does 
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or 
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 

 
(g)  Derivative financial instruments 

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge against the volatility of its fuel 
costs. On initial designation of the hedge, the Company formally documents the relationship 
between the hedging instrument and hedged item, including the risk management objectives and 
strategy in undertaking the hedge transaction, together with the methods that will be used to 
assess the effectiveness of the hedging relationship.  
 

 The Company makes an assessment, both at the inception of the hedge relationship as well as on 
an ongoing basis, whether the hedging instruments are expected to be “highly effective” in 
offsetting the changes in the fair value or cash flows of the respective hedged items during the 
period for which the hedge is designated, and whether the actual results of each hedge are within 
a range of 80-125 percent. For a cash flow hedge of a forecast transaction, the transaction should 
be highly probable to occur and should present an exposure to variations in cash flows that could 
ultimately affect reported net income. Derivatives are recognised initially at fair value; 
attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.  
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Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein are 
accounted for as described below. 

Cash flow hedges  

When a derivative is designated as the hedging instrument in a hedge of the variability in cash 
flows attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly 
probable forecast transaction that could affect profit or loss, the effective portion of changes in 
the fair value of the derivative is recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in the 
hedging reserve in equity. The amount recognised in other comprehensive income is removed and 
included in profit or loss in the same period as the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss under 
the same line item in the statement of comprehensive income as the hedged item. Any ineffective 
portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised immediately in profit or loss.  

If the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, expires or is sold, 
terminated, exercised, or the designation is revoked, then hedge accounting is discontinued 
prospectively. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income 
and presented in the hedging reserve in equity remains there until the forecast transaction affects 
profit or loss. When the hedged item is a non-financial asset, the amount recognised in other 
comprehensive income is transferred to the carrying amount of the asset when the asset is 
recognised. If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, then the balance in other 
comprehensive income is recognised immediately in profit or loss. In other cases the amount 
recognised in other comprehensive income is transferred to profit or loss in the same period that 
the hedged item affects profit or loss. 

 

 A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. 
The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each 
plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their 
service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. 
The fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date 
on government securities that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Company’s 
obligations and that are denominated in the same currency in which the benefits are expected to 
be paid. The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the Projected Unit 
Credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the recognised asset is 
limited to the present value of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future 
contributions to the plan. 

 When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to past 
service by employees is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the average 
period until the benefits become vested. To the extent that the benefits vest immediately, the 
expense is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

 The Company recognises actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and 
changes in actuarial assumptions in other comprehensive income in the period in which they 
occur.  
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 The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined 
by independent qualified actuaries using a number of assumptions.  The assumptions used in 
determining the net cost (income) for pension include the expected long-term rate of return on the 
relevant plans assets and the discount rate.  Any changes in these assumptions will impact the 
carrying amount of pension obligations. 

 The expected return on plan assets assumption is determined on a uniform basis taking into 
consideration long-term historical returns, asset allocation and future estimates of long-term 
obligations. 

 The Company determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year.  This is the 
interest rate that should be used to determine the present value of the estimated future cash 
outflows expected to be required to settle the pension obligations and also to determine the 
expected return on plan assets.  In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Company 
considers the interest rates of the Government bonds that are denominated in the currency in 
which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the 
related pension liability. 

 Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on current market conditions.  
Additional information is disclosed in Note 8. 

(iii) Defined contribution plans 
 For its defined contribution plan, the Company pays contributions to a privately administered 

pension insurance plan on a mandatory basis. The Company has no further payment obligations 
once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit 
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a 
cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available. 

 
(iv)  Termination benefits 

 Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the entity is demonstrably committed, 
without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate 
employment before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of an 
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies 
are recognised as an expense if the entity has made an offer encouraging voluntary redundancy, it 
is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the number of acceptances can be estimated 
reliably. 

 If benefits are payable more than twelve months after the reporting period, then they are 
discounted to that present value.  
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Sale of energy 

Revenue from energy sales is based on meter readings, which are carried out on a rotational 
basis throughout each month.  A provision for the current month’s billings, excluding the fuel 
surcharge, is made to record unbilled energy sales at the end of each month.  This estimate is 
based upon actual information for the preceding months and is reviewed periodically to 
assess reasonableness and adjusted where required. The provision for unbilled sales is 
included in accrued income. 

In addition to the basic tariff rates charged for energy sales, a fuel surcharge is calculated 
which is based on the difference between the cost of fuel used to generate energy sales in the 
current month and the average fuel price for the 12 months preceding January of the current 
year. The surcharge is recovered by applying the month’s surcharge rate to units billed in the 
following month. If the cost of fuel in the current month is less than the average fuel price for 
the previous year, then the basic tariff is reduced.  The provision for unbilled fuel surcharge is 
included in accrued income. 

Consumer contributions 

In certain specified circumstances, consumers requiring line extensions for electricity supply 
are required to contribute the capital cost of the extensions.  These contributions are 
recognised in income in the same period in which the services are performed. Contributions 
in excess of the applicable capital cost of line extensions, where the excess is greater than 5% 
of the estimated cost of the job, arising mainly as a result of changes to job specifications 
during the implementation stage, are refundable to the customers upon finalization of the total 
cost of the job.  The capital costs of consumer line extensions are included in property, plant 
and equipment. 
 

 Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested (including available-for-sale 
financial assets), gains on the disposal of available-for-sale financial assets, and changes in 
the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss that are recognised in 
profit or loss. Interest income is recognised as it accrues in profit or loss, using the effective 
interest method.  

 
 Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings and consumer deposits, and 

impairment losses recognised on financial assets. All borrowing costs are recognised in profit 
or loss using the effective interest method. 

 
 Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis. 
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d) 

 

(k)  Income tax 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in 
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, or in other 
comprehensive income. 

 
 Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted 

or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of 
previous years. 

 
 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences 

between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the 
amounts used for taxation purposes.  

 
 Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of 

assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither 
accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and jointly 
controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable 
future. In addition, deferred tax is not recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on the 
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be 
applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there 
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income 
taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but 
they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities 
will be realised simultaneously. 

 
 A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 

available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed 
at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related 
tax benefit will be realised.  

 
(l)  Earnings per share 

 The Company presents basic Earnings per Share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is 
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.  
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d) 

 

(m)  New standards, amendments to standards and interpretations  

 
(i) New standards, amendments and interpretations effective in the 2013 financial year 

are as follows: 

 

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 have been adopted in these 
financial statements.  Note: not all new standards, amendments and interpretations 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 affect the 
Company’s financial statements and these have not been disclosed below. 

 
IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures clarify existing applications used 
relating to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities requirements.  
Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally 
enforceable right of offset” and “simultaneous realization and settlement”.  The 
amendment requires entities to disclose information about rights of offset and 
related arrangements for financial instruments under an enforceable master 
netting agreement or similar arrangements.  As the amendment only affects 
presentation, there is no effect on the Company’s financial position or 
performance. 
 

 IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement defines fair value, establishes a framework for 
measuring fair value and sets disclosure requirements for fair value measurements.  
It explains how to measure fair value, and is applicable to assets, liabilities and an 
entity’s own equity instruments that, under other IFRSs, are required or permitted 
to be measured at fair value, or when disclosure of fair values is provided.  It does 
not introduce new fair value measurements, nor does it eliminate the practicability 
exceptions to fair value measurements that currently exist in certain standards. 
This new standard did not materially affect any fair value measurements of the 
Company’s assets or liabilities, with changes limited to presentation and 
disclosure and therefore has no effect on the Company’s financial position or 
performance. 

 
IAS 19, Employee Benefits has been amended to require that all actuarial gains and 
losses be recognized immediately in other comprehensive income.  This change 
removes the corridor method and eliminates the ability for entities to recognize all 
changes in the defined benefit obligations and plan assets in profit or loss, and 
provides for the expected return on plan assets recognized in profit or loss to be 
calculated based on the rates used to discount the defined benefit obligation.  The 
amendment also includes changes to the definitions and disclosure requirements in 
the current standard.  The effect of these amendments is disclosed in Notes 8 and 
17. 
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 (i) New standards, amendments and interpretations effective in the 2013 financial year  

  are as follows: (Cont’d) 

 

IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements has been amended to require an entity to 
present separately the items of other comprehensive income (OCI) that would be 
reclassified to profit or loss in the future from those that would never be reclassified to 
profit or loss.  Consequently an entity that presents items of OCI before related tax 
effects will also have to allocate the aggregate tax amount between these sections.  
The existing option to present the profit or loss and other comprehensive income in 
two statements has not changed.  The title of the statement has changed from 
Statement of Comprehensive Income to Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income.  However, an entity is still allowed to use other titles.  The 
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012.  As the 
amendment only affects presentation, there is no effect on the Company’s financial 
position or performance. 
 

(ii)  Standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued but not effective and have not 

been early adopted are as follows:  

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments: effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2017, deals with classification and measurement of financial assets and its 
requirements represent a significant change from the existing requirement in IAS 39 in 
respect of financial assets. IFRS 9 contains two primary measurement categories for 
financial assets: at amortized cost and fair value.  A financial asset will be measured at 
amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in 
order to collect contractual cash flows, and the asset’s contractual terms give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal outstanding.  All other financial assets will be measured at fair value.  IFRS 
9 eliminates the existing IAS 39 categories of held-to-maturity, available-for-sale and 
loans and receivables. 

 

 

•

•

LUCELEC ANNUAL REPORT 2013



ST. LUCIA ELECTRICITY SERVICES LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 
(Expressed In Eastern Caribbean Dollars) 
 

 
59

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

LUCELEC ANNUAL REPORT 2013

•



ST. LUCIA ELECTRICITY SERVICES LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 
(Expressed In Eastern Caribbean Dollars) 

 

 

60

 

 

 

andards and interpretations (Cont’d) 

 
(ii) Standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued but not effective and have not 

been early adopted are as follows: ( Cont’d) 

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments: (Cont’d) 

Recent amendments to IFRS 9 (Cont’d)  

 
For entities which initially apply IFRS 9: 

(a) before January 1,  2012: need not restate prior periods and are not required to 
 provide the disclosures set out in below; 
(b) on or after January 1, 2012 and before  January 1, 2013:  must elect either to 
 provide the disclosures set out below or to restate prior periods; and 
(c) on or after January 1, 2013: shall provide the disclosures set out below. The 
 entity need not restate prior periods. 

At the date of initial application of IFRS 9, the entity shall disclose the changes in the 
classification of financial assets and financial liabilities showing separately, 

(i) the changes in the carrying amounts on the basis of their measurement categories 
in accordance with IAS 39 (i.e. not resulting from a change in measurement 
attribute on transition to IFRS 9). 

(ii) the changes in the carrying amounts arising from a change in measurement 
 attribute on transition to IFRS 9. 

In addition to the above, in the reporting period in which IFRS 9 is initially applied, an 
entity shall disclose the following for financial assets and financial liabilities that have 
been reclassified so that they are measured at amortised cost as a result of the 
transition to IFRS 9 

(i) the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities at the end of the 
 reporting period; 

(ii) the fair value gain or loss that would have been recognized in profit or loss or 
 other comprehensive income during the reporting period if the financial  assets 

or financial liabilities had not been reclassified; 

(iii) the effective interest rate determined on the date of reclassification; and 

(iv) the interest income or expense recognized. 
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andards and interpretations (Cont’d) 

 
 (ii) Standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued but not effective and have 

  not been early adopted are as follows: (Cont’d) 

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments: (Cont’d) 

Recent amendments to IFRS 9 (Cont’d)  

 
If an entity treats the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability as its 
amortized cost at the date of initial application, then the disclosures in (iii) and (iv) 
above shall be made for each reporting period following reclassification until de-
recognition. Otherwise, all the disclosures need not be made after the reporting 
period containing the date of initial application. 

If these disclosures are made then, the entity should reconcile between  

(i) the measurement categories in IAS 39 and IFRS 9; 

(ii) the class of financial instruments at the date of initial application; and 

(iii) the line items presented in the statement of financial position. 
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 A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair 
value, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined 
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When applicable, 
further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the 
notes specific to that asset or liability. 

 
 Investments in equity and debt securities 

 The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments 
and available-for-sale financial assets is determined by reference to their quoted bid price at the 
reporting date.  

 

 Trade and other receivables 

 Trade and other receivables together with accrued income comprise balances owed by customers 
and employee advances which are due in less than 12 months.  Because of the short term nature 
of these balances, their carrying values approximate their fair value at the reporting date.   

 

 Trade and other payables 
 Due to the short term nature of the related transactions, the fair values of trade and other payables 

approximate their carrying amounts at the reporting date. 
  

 Non-derivative financial liabilities 

 Non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at fair value at initial recognition and for 
disclosure purposes, at each annual reporting date.  Fair value is calculated based on the present 
value of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the 
reporting date.  
 

 Overview 

 The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 
 

� Credit risk 
� Liquidity risk 
� Market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk) 
� Operational risk 

  
 This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the 

Company’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the 
Company’s management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these 
financial statements. 
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Risk management framework 

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the 
Company’s risk management framework. The Board has established an Audit Committee, which 
oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies 
and procedures, and which also reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in 
relation to the risks faced by the Company.  The Committee is assisted in its oversight role by the 
Internal Audit Department, which undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk 
management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee. 

 
The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced 
by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to 
limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market 
conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management 
standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in 
which all employees understand their roles and obligations. 

 Credit risk 

 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial 
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s 
receivables from customers and investment securities. 

 Trade and other receivables 

 The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of 
each customer. The demographics of the Company’s customer base, including the default risk of 
the industry in which customers operate, have less of an influence on credit risk.  

 The Board of Directors has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed 
individually for creditworthiness before the Company’s standard payment and service terms and 
conditions are offered. 

 These payment terms are stipulated under the provisions of the Electricity Supply Act, 1994 (as 
amended) and include providing discretion to the Company to require a deposit not exceeding an 
estimated two month’s supply of electricity from any consumer as security for sums due from time 
to time, and which  is refundable with interest upon permanent termination of services . Customers 
that fail to meet the Company’s benchmark creditworthiness may have their electricity supply 
withdrawn or terminated in accordance with the provisions of the Act.   

 More than 85 percent of the Company’s customers have been transacting with the Company for 
over four years, and losses have occurred infrequently. The Company establishes an allowance 
for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other 
receivables. The main component of this allowance is a specific loss component that relates to 

individually significant exposures. The collective loss allowance is determined based on historical 
data of payment statistics for similar financial assets. 
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Credit risk (Cont’d) 

   Investments 

 The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by only investing in liquid securities. Given these 
high credit ratings, management does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations. 

 Cash and cash equivalents 

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with maturities of three 
months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their 
fair value, and are used by the Company in the management of its short-term commitments. 

 Liquidity risk 

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as 
they fall due. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that 
it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and 
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s 
reputation. 

 Typically the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected 
operational expenses including the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the potential 
impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters. In 
addition, the Company maintains the following lines of credit: 

 
Two overdraft facilities of EC$10 million and EC$6 million which are secured. Interest is 
payable at the rate of 9% and 8% respectively.  

A standby credit facility in the amount of EC$10 Million which will be utilised to restore 
transmission and distribution assets damaged by hurricane and other natural disasters, 
should it become necessary. This facility is convertible into a 12-year term instalment 
loan subject to the necessary approvals. The interest rate is 7.41% on the credit facility 
and 6.5% if converted into a demand loan.  

 
Market risk 

 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates 
and equity prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial 
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk 
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.  

 The Company is exposed to currency risk on purchases and borrowings denominated in a 
currencies other than its functional currency. The Company’s exposure to currency risk is 
minimal since most of its obligations are denominated in United States Dollars and the United 
States dollar has been formally pegged to the Eastern Caribbean Dollar at EC$2.70 = US$1.00 
since 1976.   

  The Company limits its interest rate risk by ensuring as far as possible that fixed rate borrowings 
are negotiated. The Company is not exposed to equity price risk. 
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  Operational risk 

 

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes 
associated with the Company’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from 
external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal 
and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour. 
Operational risks arise from all of the Company’s operations. The Company’s objective is to 
manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage to the 
Company’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that 
restrict initiative and creativity.  

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address 
operational risk is assigned to the Board of Directors and the senior management. This 
responsibility is supported by the development of overall company standards for the 
management of operational risk in the following areas:    requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent 

authorisation of transactions 

 requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions 

 compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements 

 documentation of controls and procedures 

 requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy 
of controls and procedures to address the risks identified 

 requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial action 

 development of contingency plans 

 training and professional development 

 ethical and business standards 

 risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective. 
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 Capital management 

  The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and 
market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors 
monitors the return on capital, which the Company defines as net profit after tax divided by 
average shareholders’ equity. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividends to 
ordinary shareholders. 

 
  The Board seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with 

higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. 
Under the terms of the mortgage debenture agreement, the Company’s total debt shall not exceed 
two times its tangible net worth which currently comprises its share capital and retained earnings.  
The Company was in compliance with this requirement at year-end. 

 
 There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the year. 
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Borrowing costs amounting to $0 (2012 - $3,099,599) were capitalized during the year. 
 As stated in Note 14, borrowings are secured by hypothecary obligations and mortgage debentures 
creating fixed charges over all immovable property and floating charges over all other assets, all ranking 
pari passu pursuant to a security sharing agreement, and assignment of insurance policies.   
The useful lives of certain classes of property, plant and equipment were revised effective January 1, 
2013.  The effect of the change was a decrease in depreciation expense of $3,600,000 for the year ended 
December 31, 2013.  

            
 

  
Information 

Systems

Way Leave 

Rights

Work In

Progress Total

Cost       
Balance at January 1, 2012 $ 6,930,634 2,254,087 5,372,157 14,556,878

077,452,6643,376,3355,092178,092,2 snoitiddA
-)418,428,8(226,002291,426,8  srefsnarT

Reclassifications to property, 
)339,953()986,78()442,272(- tnempiuqe dna tnalp

Balance at December 31, 2012 17,845,697 2,473,018 133,000 20,451,715

Balance at January 1, 2013 17,845,697 2,473,018 133,000 20,451,715
042,054,2079,519,1549,781523,643 snoitiddA
-       )976,238,1(-976,238,1 srefsnarT

Reclassifications from property, 
plant and equipment  27,501 24,324 - 51,825 
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 20,052,202 2,685,287 216,291 22,953,780
Accumulated Amortisation   
Balance at January 1, 2012 $ 4,734,983  -  - 4,734,983
Amortised for the year 662,741  -  - 662,741
Balance at December 31, 2012 5,397,724  -  - 5,397,724

Balance at January 1, 2013 5,397,724  -  - 5,397,724
Amortised for the year 1,975,969  -  - 1,975,969
Reclassifications to property, 
plant and equipment (8,632)  -  - (8,632)
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 7,365,061  -  - 7,365,061
Carrying Amounts   

At January 1, 2012 $ 2,195,651 2,254,087 5,372,157 9,821,895
At December 31, 2012 $ 12,447,973 2,473,018 133,000 15,053,991
At January 1, 2013 $ 12,447,973 2,473,018 133,000 15,053,991
At December 31, 2013 $ 12,687,141 2,685,287 216,291 15,588,719
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7.   Intangible Assets (Cont’d) 

 
Way leave rights, which have an indefinite life period, allow the Company access to property 
owned by third parties for the purpose of installing and maintaining the Company’s 
transmission and distribution network.  
 
The useful lives of computer software were revised effective January 1, 2013.  The effect of 
the change was a decrease in amortisation expense of $180,000 for the year ended December 
31, 2013.  
 

8.  Retirement Benefit Assets 

 

 Grade I Employees  
 The Company contributes to a defined benefit pension scheme with Sagicor Life Inc. for 

Grade I employees who were employed prior to January 1, 2008. 
 

 Grade II Employees 

The Company contributes to a defined benefit pension scheme for Grade II employees who 
were employed prior to January 1, 2008 which, up to December 31, 2008, was held with 
CLICO International Life Insurance Company Limited (“CLICO”).  Subsequent fundings to 
the plan are currently being managed by RBC Investments Management (Caribbean) Limited 
(Note 31).  

 
 The most recent actuarial valuation of these two schemes is dated December 31, 2012.  The 

plans were valued using the “Projected Unit Credit” method of valuation.  
  

 Grade III Employees 

 For its senior employees who were employed prior to January 1, 2008, the Company 
contributes to the regional CDC Caribbean Pension Scheme administered by Sagicor Life Inc. 

 The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan was completed December 31, 2012.  

The plan was valued using the “Projected Unit Credit” method of valuation.   
 

 The principal actuarial assumptions used for all schemes were as follows: 
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8. Retirement Benefit Assets (Cont’d) 

 
Sensitivity Analysis 
 
The calculation of the defined benefit obligations for Grades I to III is sensitive to the 
assumptions used. The following tables summarise how the defined benefit obligations as at 
December 31, 2013 would have changed as a result of a change in the assumptions used. 
 
Grade III 

 1% p.a. increase  1% p.a. decrease 

$ etar tnuocsiD (3,906,000 ) 5,087,000
 0.5% p.a. increase  0.5% p.a. decrease

Future salary increases $ 787,000  (746,000 )
 
An increase of one year in the assumed life expectancies would increase the defined benefit 
obligations at December 31, 2013 by $95,000. 
 
Grade II 

 1% p.a. increase  1% p.a. decrease

   

000,121,2 )000,717,1($ etar tnuocsiD
Future salary increases $ 728,000  (651,000 )
 
An increase of one year in the assumed life expectancies would increase the defined benefit 
obligations at December 31, 2013 by $287,000. 
 
Grade I 

 1% p.a. increase  1% p.a. decrease

$ etar tnuocsiD (1,361,000 ) 1,783,000
Future salary increases $ 1,250,000  (1,048,000 )
 
An increase of one year in the assumed life expectancies would increase the defined benefit 
obligations at December 31, 2013 by $172,000. 
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9. Available-for-sale Financial Assets 

 

 2013  2012

Securities: available-for    elas-

At beginning of year 761$ ,969  166,163
Additions for year 1 ,772   1,806

969,761  147,961$ raey fo dne tA
  

   
 The available-for-sale financial asset as at December 31, 2013 has a stated interest rate of 1.52% 

to 2% (2012 - 1.52% to 2%).  The above investment is not available for the day-to-day operations 
of the Company (Note 30). 

  
 The Company’s exposure to credit, currency and interest rate risks related to the available-for-

sale financial assets are disclosed in Note 28. 
 
10. Inventories 

  

  2013  2012  

     
704,179,2  660,128,2$ seirotnevni leuF
714,069,8  644,584,4  strap eraps noitareneG

Transmission, distribution and other spares  6,929,839  9,049,302  
 480,514  -  tisnart ni sdooG

 1012,693,12  153,632,41  
Less:  provision for inventory obsol

925,861,91  249,510,21$ 
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11. Trade, Other Receivables and Prepayments 

    
2013 

  

2012

 

Trade receivables due from related partie
 504,237,55  320,871,65  selbaviecer edart rehtO

007,531,55  111,152,85  ten ,selbaviecer edarT
      

Other receivables due from related pa
 806,230,4  640,321,5  selbaviecer rehtO

 941,763,4  516,910,5  ten ,selbaviecer rehtO
     

006,237,61  570,075,51  emocni deurccA
944,532,67  108,048,87  

 233,543,1  275,653,3  stnemyaperP

187,085,77  373,791,28$ 
  
 The Company’s exposure to credit and currency risks and impairment losses related to trade and 

other receivables are disclosed in Note 28. 
 

 
12. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise:  

  
2013  2012

$ dnah ni dna knab ta hsaC
Term dep 52 stiso ,641, ,994,967

474,586,63  728,758,92$ 
  

The term deposits earn interest at rates ranging from 1% to 3.75% per annum (2012 - 1.85% to 
4% per annum) and mature between 1 to 10 months after year end (2012 - 1 to 7 months). 
 
Term deposits totalling $21,160,397 (2012 - $17,552,025) are not available for the day-to-day 
operations of the Company (Note 30). 
 
The Company’s exposure to credit and currency risk related to cash and cash equivalents are 
disclosed in Note 28. 
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   2013  2012

Authorised:     
000,000,001  000,000,001 serahs yranidro gnitoV
000,008  000,008 serahs gnitov-non yranidrO
821,412,1  821,412,1 serahs ecnereferP

    
  

   

Issued and fully paid    
297,265,77  297,265,77$ serahs yranidro gnitov 000,004,22

520,000  non-voting ordinary shares  2,600,000  2,600,000

297,261,08  297,261,08$  
 The shares of the Company have no par value. 
  

 

 This comprises: 
 

   2013  2012  

Current     

878,145,3  239,228,3$ sgniworrob knaB
695,127,11  704,550,11   seitrap detaleR
474,362,51  933,878,41  

  

Non-current    
759,376,83  608,658,43  sgniworrob knaB
341,321,921  157,512,811   seitrap detaleR
001,797,761  755,270,351  

Total borrowings   
538,512,24  837,976,83 sgniworrob knaB

475,060,381  698,059,761$ 
 

 Borrowings include loans amounting to $95,248,142 (2012 - $100,017,120) that are guaranteed 
by the Government of Saint Lucia and other bank loans that are secured by hypothecary 
obligations and mortgage debentures creating fixed charges over all immovable property and 
floating charges over all other assets, all ranking pari passu pursuant to a security sharing 
agreement, and assignment of insurance policies.   
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14. Borrowings (Cont’d) 

 
 The weighted average effective rates at the date of the statement of financial position were as 
follows:  

 

 2013  2012  

 %  %  

    

 %31.8 sgniworrob knaB  8.11%
Related parties      7.60%  7.59%

 
Maturity of non-current borrowings: 

 

 

2102  3102 

   

345,427,41  140,743,51$ sraey 2 dna 1 neewteB
046,101,84  383,243,84 sraey 5 dna 2 neewteB
719,079,401  331,383,98 sraey 5 revO

001,797,761  755,270,351$ 
 
The  Company’s  exposure  to interest rate, foreign currency, and liquidity risks related to 
borrowings is disclosed in Note 28. 
 

15. Consumer Deposits 

 
Consumers requesting energy connections are required to pay a deposit that is refundable when 
the service is terminated. Interest is accrued on these deposits at the rate of 3% (2012 - 3%) per 
annum.   
 

2102  3102 

149,501,11  437,356,11$ stisoped remusnoC
939,466,3  152,198,3 laurcca tseretnI

088,077,41  589,445,51$ 
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16. Deferred Tax Liabilities 

 
 Deferred tax liability is calculated in full on temporary differences under the balance sheet 
liability method using a principal tax rate of 30% (2012 - 30%).  The movement on the deferred 
tax liability account is as follows: 

 

  3102 

2012

Restated

428,352,03  345,644,73$ raey fo gninnigeb tA
770,628,6  553,076 )22 etoN( ssol dna tiforp ni desingoceR

345,644,73  693,347,73$ raey fo dne tA
 

Deferred tax liabilities are attributed to the following items: 
 

  3102 

2012

Restated

204,026,63  781,052,73$ tnempiuqe dna tnalp ,ytreporP
Retirement benefit assets 141,628  902,394 seitilibail dna

345,644,73  693,347,73$ 
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            The Company contributes to a post retirement medical scheme with The Beacon Insurance 
Co. Limited for all its current employees and retirees. 

 
The principal actuarial assumptions used for all schemes were as follows: 
 Grade III Grades I and II 

 
 

 %0.7%0.7%0.7 setar tnuocsiD

 

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position at December 31, 2013 are 
determined as follows: 
 

 Grade III Grade II & I Total 

 
2013

2012 2012 2012

Restated
Present value of defined 
benefit obligations  
 
Fair value of plans’ 
assets  

Post retirement liability  
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 Reconciliation of opening and closing defined benefit liability: 
 

 Grade III Grade II & I  Total 

2013 2012

Restated

2013 2012

Restated

2013 2012

Restated

Unrecognised gain charged to 

Opening defined benefit 

N
Re-measurements recognised in 

 
        

 

Sensitivity Analysis: 
 
The calculation of the defined benefit obligations for Grades I to III is sensitive to the 
assumptions used. The following tables summarise how the defined benefit obligations as at 
December 31, 2013 would have changed as a result of a change in the assumptions used. 
 
Grade III 

 1% p.a. increase 1% p.a. decrease 

$ etar tnuocsiD (76,000) 100,000
Medical expense increases $ 99,576 (76,837 )
 
An increase of 1 year in the assumed life expectancies would increase the defined benefit 
obligations at December 31, 2013 by $1,000. 
 
Grade I & II  

 1% p.a. increase  1% p.a. decrease

$ etar tnuocsiD (208,000 ) 269,000
Medical expense increases $ 271,000 (213,000 )
 
An increase of 1 year in the assumed life expectancies would increase the defined benefit 
obligations at December 31, 2013 by $48,000. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Defined benefit obligations at prior

Closing defined benefit obligations
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2013 

  

2012

Restated 

084,235,81  927,786,91$  selbayap edarT
668,511,02  227,957,3 sesnepxe deurccA
945,977,7 295,784,6 selbayap rehtO
598,724,64 340,539,92$ 

 
The Company’s exposure to foreign currency and liquidity risks related to trade and other 
payables is disclosed in Note 28. 

In accordance with the provisions of the Electricity Supply Amendment Act Nos. 12 of 2006 and 
13 of 2006, a mechanism was put into effect for the computation of the Allowable Rate of Return, 
based on a predetermined range of Return on Average Contributed Capital. 

The Allowable Rate of Return is between 2% and 7% above the cost of the most recent long-term 
bonds issued by the Government of St. Lucia on the Regional Government Securities Market, 
with a minimum return of 10%. This was equal to a range of 10% to 14.5% in respect of 2013 
(2012 - 10% to 14.5%). 

In the event that the actual Rate of Return exceeds the Allowable Rate of Return, 50% of the 
amount in excess of the maximum of the range will be distributed proportionately to hotel and 
industrial consumers as a decrease in the basic energy rate based on the total kilowatt hours 
consumed in the preceding calendar year. The Minister may also, by Order, apply the decrease in 
the basic energy rate to consumers or groups of consumers in need of special protection. 

 In the event that the actual Rate of Return falls below the minimum of 10%, provision is also 
made for the upward adjustment of the basic energy rate.  

 As the actual Rate of Return fell below the Allowable Rate of Return for the year ended 
   .edam eb lliw noitairporppa on ,3102 ,13 rebmeceD

  

 

 erahs rep )24.0$ - 2102(       00.0$   -    laniF
 

  

 The final dividend for the year 2013 had not been declared as at December 31, 2013.
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21. Other Gains, Net 

 

 

 niag egnahcxe ngieroF
 

22.        Taxation 

 xat tnerruC
 )61 etoN( xat derrefeD

 
 
 Reconciliation of the applicable tax charge to the effective tax charges: 

 
 noitaxat erofeb tiforP

 sexat 0102 ot noitcerroC
 sexat 2102 fo tnemetatsrednU

 egrahc xat lautcA
 

Deferred tax on each component of other comprehensive income is as follows: 
 

 

 
 
Re-measurement 
of defined benefit 

Other 
comprehensive 
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LUCELEC ANNUAL REPORT 2013

•
•
•



ST. LUCIA ELECTRICITY SERVICES LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 
(Expressed In Eastern Caribbean Dollars) 

 

87

  (Cont’d) 

 
 Transactions with key management personnel 

In addition to their salaries, the Company also provides non-cash benefits to executive officers 
and contributions to a post-employment defined benefit plan on their behalf.  The key 
management personnel compensations are as follows:  

  3102  2012

    
603,391,3  450,305,3$ stifeneb eeyolpme mret-trohS
584,126  233,526 stifeneb tnemyolpme-tsoP
811,782  041,613 noitarenumer ’srotceriD
965,13  927,06 stifeneb noitanimreT

774,331,4  552,505,4$ 
 

 The Company is controlled by the following entities: 
 

2102  3102 

 %  %
00.02  00.02 .dtL aicuL .tS aremE
00.02  00.02 detimiL knaB snezitiC tsriF
97.61  97.61 noitaroproC ecnarusnI lanoitaN
33.61  33.61 licnuoC ytiC seirtsaC
44.21  44.21 aicuL tniaS fo tnemnrevoG

65.58  65.58 

  The remaining 14.44% (2012 - 14.44%) of the shares is widely held. 
 

 Transactions with related parties  

 
 

Donations 

 
      The LUCELEC Trust Company Inc. was formally established on October 14, 2005 as a non-

profit company, funded through a Deed of Covenant between LUCELEC as the donor and the 
Trust. The Fund was set up for the purpose of providing financial assistance or purchasing items 
and or/property to aid any legitimate non-political entity, charitable, educational and sporting 
body by way of donation. LUCELEC provided initial funding of two million dollars to the Trust 
and under the Deed of Covenant is committed to provide additional sums to the Trust annually. 

    LUCELEC donated the amount of $100,000 (2012 - $360,000) to the Trust for 2013. 
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25. Related Parties  (Cont’d) 

 Transactions with related parties (Cont’d) 

 
Transactions with shareholders during the year were as follows: 

 

Supply of services 

2102  3102  

    
262,944,3  365,002,3$ noitaroproC ecnarusnI lanoitaN
403,497,1  082,088,1 licnuoC ytiC seirtsaC
379,473,72  725,562,92  aicuL tniaS fo tnemnrevoG

935,816,23  073,643,43$ 
 
The Government of Saint Lucia receives a 10% discount on electricity charges in respect of all 
accounts other than Street lighting, except where the minimum charges apply. 

 

 Balances at the year end arising from supply of electricity services to related parties during the 
year (Note 11) were as follows: 
  20122013

   
National Insurance Corporation $ 292,973

360,111  813,551 licnuoC ytiC seirtsaC
649,731,6  154,070,01  aicuL tniaS fo tnemnrevoG

01$ ,518,742 6,557,588
Other Services 

 
Balances at the year end arising from supply of other services to related parties during the year 
(Note 11) were as follows:  
 2013  

 

LUCELEC Trust Company Inc. $
064,1  - .dtL aicuL .tS aremE
224,837  456,532  aicuL tniaS fo tnemnrevoG

532$ ,654 759,952
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

308,579

2012
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25. Related Parties  (Cont’d) 

 

Transactions with related parties (Cont’d) 
 
Loans from shareholders 

Movements in loans from shareholders for the year and their balances at December 31, 2013 were 
as follows: 
 

National Insurance Corporation   
$ raey fo gninnigeb tA 100,017,120  42,242,922

 000,000,06  -  naol wen morf sdeecorP

 
)875,997,4( ) 814,211,21( raey gnirud stnemyapeR

443,344,79  207,409,78 
Interest expense 7,343,441  2,573,776

021,710,001  341,842,59$ raey fo dne tA
 

 

First Citizens Bank Limited   
122,236,74  816,728,04$ raey fo gninnigeb tA

 )229,795,01( ) 154,195,9( raey gnirud stnemyapeR
992,430,73  761,632,13  
023,397,3  848,687,2 esnepxe tseretnI  

At end of year 43$ ,023,015  40,827,619
 

The above loans are fully secured (Note 14). 

Finance costs 

Details of the related finance costs are as follows: 
 

2102  3102  

   
677,375,2  144,343,7$ noitaroproC ecnarusnI lanoitaN
023,397,3  848,687,2 detimiL knaB snezitiC tsriF
690,763,6  982,031,01$ 

 
These charges are included in the finance costs, net of $13,189,926 (2012 - $9,388,635) disclosed 
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
 
 2013  2012

Lease Charges   
000,001  000,001$ aicuL tniaS fo tnemnrevoG
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Transactions with related parties (Cont’d) 

 

Transactions with key management personnel 

A few key management personnel hold positions in other entities that result in them having 
significant influence over the financial or operating policies of those entities. 

The aggregate value of transactions and outstanding balances relating to those entities were as 
follows: 

Transaction Value

 

Stephen McNamara McNamara 

  
Payments on behalf of 

 
26. Expenses by Nature  

 

2013  

2012 

Restated 

651,470,22  269,743,1$ esab revo tsoc leuF
Fuel at base pric  946,210,491 e  187,235,821
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

147,266  969,579,1 stessa elbignatni fo noitasitromA
539,128,01  664,481,11 ecnanetniam dna sriapeR
671,734,62  619,731,82 )72 etoN( sesnepxe tifeneb eeyolpmE
533,227,61  190,707,61 sesnepxe gnitarepo rehtO
917,619,592  199,540,482$ 

560,124,762       042,026,252$ sesnepxe gnitarepO
 456,594,82  157,524,13 sesnepxe evitartsinimdA

917,619,592  199,540,482$ 
 

Director/Shareholder Company Transactions
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27. Employee Benefit Expenses 

 
 

  2012

 2013  Restated

   
543,741,02  669,634,12$ seiralas dna segaW
106,050,2  677,151,2 snoitubirtnoc noisneP
902,955  308,305 snoitubirtnoc lacideM

 120,086,3  173,540,4 stifeneb eeyolpme rehtO
671,734,62  619,731,82$ 

 
The number of permanent employees at December 31, 2013 was 240 (2012 - 249). 

 
 
28. Financial Instruments 

  Credit risk 

  Exposure to credit risk 

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum exposure. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was: 
 Notes Carrying Amounts 

2013 

 
 

2012

Available-for-sale financ
944,532,67  108,048,87 11  selbaviecer rehto dna edarT
474,586,63  728,758,92 21 stnelaviuqe hsac dna hsaC
298,880,311  963,868,801$ 

 

 

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by type of 
customer was: 
  Carrying Amounts 

2013 

 
 

2012

Business, before deducting provision  
Residential, before deducting provision  

399,982,26  567,696,66$ 
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  Credit risk (Cont’d) 

 
Impairment losses: 

The aging of trade receivables at the reporting date was: 

 

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year 
was as follows: 
 

934,381,6  392,451,7$  ,1 yraunaJ ta ecnalaB
 458,079  163,192,1 dezingocer ssol tnemriapmI

392,451,7  456,544,8$  ,13 rebmeceD ta ecnalaB
 

The allowance accounts in respect of trade and other receivables are used to record impairment 
losses unless the Company is satisfied that no recovery of the amount owing is possible; at that 
point the amounts considered irrecoverable are written-off against the financial asset directly. 
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28.  Financial Instruments (Cont’d) 

 

 ksiR ycnerruC  

   
  The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk was based on notional amounts as follows:   

 

 

 
 
Cash and cash 

Trade and other 

 

 The following significant exchange rates applied during the year: 
 

GBP 1 

EURO 1 

CAN 1 2.513
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28.  Financial Instruments (Cont’d) 

 
 ksir etar tseretnI

  eliforP
 
At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial 
instruments was: 

 

Carrying 

Amounts

2013

Carrying 

Amounts

2012

 

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value 
     .ssol ro tiforp hguorht

  

     
  seulav riaF

      stnuoma gniyrrac susrev seulav riaF
  

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the 
statement of financial position are as follows: 

 

Carrying

amounts as at

December 31,

2013

Fair values as 

at December 

31, 2013  

Carrying 

amounts as at 

December 31, 

2012 

Fair values as 

at December 

31, 2012

 
The basis of determining fair values is disclosed in Note 4.      

 

Interest rates used for determining fair values  
The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flow are based on the market interest rates at the 

      .etad gnitroper
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The Company contributes to a Defined Benefit pension scheme for Grade II employees who were 
employed prior to January 1, 2008. Up to December 31, 2008, this scheme was invested in a 
deposit administration contract with CLICO International Life Insurance Limited (“CLICO”). In 
addition, the scheme had purchased individual annuity policies from CLICO to secure pensions in 
payment. 
 
On January 30, 2009, in accordance with the terms of the deposit administration contract between 
the CLICO and the scheme’s trustees, the trustees with the consent of the Company served notice 
on CLICO to terminate the contract. Under the terms of the contract, CLICO is required to repay 
the value of the deposit administration contract in monthly instalments of $250,000, and interest 
is accrued on the residual balance at a rate of 5% per annum. These monthly instalments were 
paid to the scheme’s new investment manager (RBC Investment Management (Caribbean) 
Limited) up until October 2010 when payments stopped. The estimated residual balance of the 
fund held with CLICO at December 31, 2013 was $5.964 million (2012 - $7.585 million). In 
addition, the estimated value of the immediate annuity policies that the scheme holds with 
CLICO was $1.571 million as at December 31, 2013 (2012 - $2.080 million). The total value of 
the scheme’s investment in CLICO was therefore $7.535 million as at December 31, 2013 (2012 - 
$9.665 million). 
 
Contributions remitted to the scheme since 2008 have been paid to the scheme’s new investment 
manager, RBC Investment Management (Caribbean) Limited.  
 
During 2011, the trustees also initiated legal action and obtained judgment against CLICO from 
the High Court of Justice (Saint Lucia) of the Eastern Caribbean Supreme Court in respect of the 
fund balance due to the Scheme. Subsequent to the judgment, the operations of CLICO in 
Barbados and the Eastern Caribbean were placed under Judicial Management and this may affect 
CLICO’s ability to honour its financial obligations to the Grade II pension scheme. 
 
As at December 31, 2013, the computation of the present value of the pension obligations as 
required by IAS 19 are reliant on the value placed on the Scheme’s investments with CLICO. The 
Judicial Manager of CLICO has received sanction from the High Court of Barbados to pursue a 
restructuring plan for the Company.  The proposed plan will result in a write down in value of all 
policyholders’ liabilities to match the estimated value of the Company’s net available assets.  The 
restructured policyholder liabilities and all the assets of the Company will be transferred to a new 
company which will be separately governed and managed.  Currently, the quantitative effects of 
this proposed plan is uncertain. As a result, a 25% impairment loss has been taken into 
consideration in the computation of the Company’s asset on the Statement of Financial Position 
for the pension plans and its annual net pension cost as required by IAS 19.  

LUCELEC ANNUAL REPORT 2013



ST. LUCIA ELECTRICITY SERVICES LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 
(Expressed In Eastern Caribbean Dollars) 

 

99

 

 
The Company has been named a defendant to a number of claims as at December 31, 2013. 
While it is impossible to be certain of the outcome of any particular case or of the amount of 
any possible adverse verdict, the Company believes that their defenses to all these various 
claims are meritorious on both the law and the facts. Having regard to the foregoing, the 
Company (i) does not consider it appropriate to make any provision in respect of any pending 
litigation and (ii) does not believe that the ultimate outcome of this litigation will 
significantly impair the Company’s financial condition. Payments if any, arising from these 
claims will be recorded in the period that the payment is made. 
 

 

Changes in accounting policy 

 
IAS 19 (Revised), Employee Benefits 

 

The amendments to IAS 19, Employee Benefits, became effective January 1, 2013. The 
financial statements of 2011 and 2012 have been restated to reflect the amendments.  The 
effect of the restatement is summarised below. 
 

Statement of Comprehensive Income  

Increase in administrativ

  tiforp ni esaerceD

 
 

Statement of Financial Position 

(Increase)/decrease in deferred ta

Increase/(decrease) in

 
There was a decrease in earnings per share at December 31, 2012 of $0.005. 
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 Effect on 

2012 

   

 
Effect on 

2012 

 Effect on 

2011 

 )056,983,2()260,191( $
  

 Effect on 

2012 

   

 )145,546(

 
Effect on 

2012 

 Effect on 

2011 

   )322,004,9( )499,055( $
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 Effect on 

2012 

   

  550,191,2 $

 ) 962,746( 

  
 Effect on 

2012 

 Effect on 

2011 

 

598,257,62  657,889 $
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33. Prior Periods’ Adjustments (Cont’d) 

 
 The net effect of the above restatements as a result of application of accounting standards is 

summarised below: 
  Effect on 

2012 

   

Statement of Comprehensive Income  

 550,191,2 $ eunever rehto ni esaercnI

Increase in administrativ
 )683,565(  esnepxe xat emocni ni esaercnI
 )145,546(  esnepxe xat derrefed ni esaercnI

 705,676,3   tiforp ni esaercnI

   
  Effect on 

2012 

 Effect on 

2011 

Statement of Financial Position 

 )322,004,9( )499,055(  seitilibail xat derrefed ni esaercnI

  791,012,92 450,177,3 $ sgninrae deniater ni esaercnI

571,742,41 453,425,3 $ evreser ecnarusni fles ni esaercnI  

 )571,742,41( )453,425,3( $ sgninrae deniater ni esaerceD
220,369,41 007,642 $ sgninrae deniater ni esaercni teN

   
There was an increase in earnings per share at December 31, 2012 by $0.16. 

 

34. Comparatives 

 

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in the 
presentation in the current year. 
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